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Introduction

The earliest report of mining in the Dryden area
mentions an assay of two dollars per ton in gold for a
sample of ore taken from Wabigoon Lake area and one of
the first listed mines, was that o f 0liver Daunais'
Wabigoon gold mine, four miles south east of the Barclay
station of the Canadian Pacific Railroad. As far back
as 1894, government geologists e xpressed an interest
in the region, bringing out "exceedingly fine" specimens
supporting this interest and, by 1895, glowing accounts
of the gold discoveries were floating out of the north-
ern bush. This rugged country became a new target for
a mining "boom" and soon men, with that unmistakable
twinkle in their eyes, began drifting in from all over
the continent.

The "New" Klondike and the Manitou drew interest
from all over. Capital came in from the States and as
far away as England, as everybody sought to get a piece
of the action. The action, though, in most cases, never
came .

Either through mismanagement or poor judgement, many
of the mining properties d4died before they were given life.
Many of the so-called mines were merely prospects, as only
small shafts were sunk then properly abandoned. But, not
before complete surface equipment, including a mill, had
been erected on the site. This: type of unwarranted ex-—
penditure put many a company out of business in those
early years. Also, the lack of knowledge shown concern-
ing the structure and nature of the wveins, some of them
too small or too low in gold content to ever be consider—
ed profitable, was ancother popular mistake that doomed
mining prospects. Too much money was spent before prop-—

eties reached the producing stage and c losing them down



was the ultimate alternative.

Between the years 1895 and 1912, at least twenty mines
were opened up around the Manitou Lakes are and dreams of
getting rich guick in the "Westerrn Ontario Gold Fields" were
kept alive by the profits shown from the Big Master,
Laurentian and Sakoose Mines. During the entire peried,
only these three mfﬁea ever milled an appreciable amount of
ore and the Laurentian’s total production led the area's at
$£141 ,000.00. However, after 1912, practically all mining
had ceased and s ince then periodic attempts have been made
to reopen certain mines, but without success.

Early mining failures in the area curbed prospecting,
but each year, a few prospectors returned to do mainly
development work on old 1 oeations. During the summer of
1932, the government sent out a geologist to do a survey for
the region, in hope of obtaining new information for furt-
her prospecting of the area. It was reasoned that no actual
concentrations of gold existed that would develop a gold
body of commercial importance, but despite the long and rat-
her disappointing history of +the area, "there is reason to
believe that an intensive search may yet reward the investig-
ator."

The material compiled on these pages is an attempt at
re-constructing those "golden™ years of the Dryden area's
mining boom. I cannot exXpress t he gratitude that goes out
to those area residents who gave invaluable aid to the people
researching this topic. A mong thosze on this list, I would
like to ineclude, Mr. K. Collins, Mrs. E. Collis, Mr. & Mrs.
L. Hampe, My. E. Palmer., the Dryden Museum, the Dryden
Observer, Experience T6 Kenora, Lakehead University Library,
the Ministry of Natural Resources in Henora & Sioux TLookout.
The information was donated freely and with much interest.
If this project serves half its purpose, in re-calling
those years to the area people, T feel it will be all worthwhile.

Experience 76 & TT7, K.H. L.T.
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‘The-description: that follows was taken from

& book published in 1929, written by Mr. W. L. Goodwin

entitled Geology and Minerals of Ontario. TIn this pas-

sage, Mr. Goodwin explains, in geological terms, the type
of gold deposits encountered by early prospectores and
outlines the different mineral bands of the Dryden area.
The materisal, being published in 1929, desls with the
near-past and present (at that time) mining operations.
It is, there fore, a "birds -eye view" of the mining
activity that had taken place before and around the

1920s.




Type of Gold Deposits Found in Ontaric

The pyrite—-gold guartz type in whiech the chief met-
allie mineral iz pyrite and the main gangue mineral i=s
guartz is the most common form of gold deposit fuund in
Cntardice. With the pyrites there may be smaller gquantities
of copper pyrites, zine blende, galens, pyrrhotite, magnet-
ite, mispichel, bismuth minerals, tellurides, molybdenite,
scheelite, native copper, Ltelluride, etec., and the gangue
minerals may be represented in emall part by caleite, bearite,
tourmalin, feldspar, etc. The gold usually occurs with
Tinely divided pyrite, calcite, and chlorite in thin cracks
in the quartz, and with small grains o f pyrite in the schist.
This is the conmonest and most productive type and is repre-
sented by the Porcupine mines and most of the gold mines of

Horthwestern Ontario.

1. Lake of the Woods
& West Shosl Lake

2. Eagle Lake, Wabi-
goon or Dryden
(Manitou & Sakoooe)

3. Sturgeon Lake

L. Mine Centre, Fast
Shoal Lake or Lower
Seine area

5. MAtikokan or Upper
Seline area

6. Huronion and She-
bandowan Lake

T. Kowkash & Tashotsa

8. Red Lake

9. Woman & Narrow Lakes

10. Savant Lake
B Gold Areas £ Paleozoic [ Pre-Cambrian



Manitou Leke Gold Ares

The Manitou lakes lile north of Relny L&ké end be-—
tween the CP and CH lines from Port Arthur to Winnipeg., The -
areﬁ iz reached by & water roube from Wabigoon Btatian on
+he CPR with on long portage over a very rough road from the
south end of Wabigoon Lake to the north end of Manitou Leke,
The Journey was made in small steamers on the leles and a stage
over the portage. The gold deposits of quartz wveins in schiat
and mineralized schist carry valuses., The gold iz asgssociated
mostly with pyrite. The first discovery was made about 1895
and the area was active untill 1205. The Dominion Reduction
Company of Cobalt de-waterd and sampled the Laurentian, Big
Master and Jubilee in 1916, but 4id not continue operations.

In 1828 the Manitou Island syndicate begen the development of
a rroperty south of Gold Rock. The Leaurentian, Blg Master,
Little Master, Paymaster, Twentieth Century end a number of
other properties form a group around the north end of Manitou
Lake.

The Lseaurentian (HP 3?1} meln ore body consists of bands
of guartz in disbese schist, the whole averaging 20 feet in
width. The shaft iﬁ LED feet deep and stoping has been con-—
fined to smell ore shoots near the shaft. Some extrecrdinardily
rich pockets of gold were encountered. The productlion of the
Lauwrentian was the largest in the a.:ﬁe:a.

The Big Master produced some gold between 1902 and 1905
from ore shoots averaging $17. and 8.35 per ton. The workings

went to a depth of 285 feet. The dire shoots, while small at

10



the surface were much larger with depth.

The Twentieth Century farther south near the west shore
of the lake, sank a shaft and bullt & twenty stamp mill, but
only a little gold was produced. The mill was later removed to
the Laurentian.

The Paymaster was worked on a bedded quartz wein with
schist in diabase and produced some gold with a ten stamp mill

The Glasas Reef, farther south on the east shore of the
lake produced little gold.

In 1925 some work was done on the Reliance mine by the
Dryden Gold Corporation. The Reliance is a mile and a half
west of Anzhekumming Lake (Upper Manitou Lake.)

The Sakoose,or Golden Whale, is near Dyment station on
the CPR. Mining operations were carried on from 1899 to 1902,
the ore beling taken from gquartz wveing associated with felsite
and gquartz porphyry. The ore was shipped to the Keewatin Re-

duction Works for treatment.

Dryden—Wabigoon Gold Area

In this area the gold veins occur chiefly in keewatin
schists, particularly near their contact with granite. They
vary in width from a few inches to 20 feet or more and consist
of white guartz, with ankerite, pyrite and tourmaline.

The Redeemer has been in operation at intervals aince
190%, when it produced a small quantity of gold. A quartszs
gchist wein with much pyrite was worked to a depth of 235

feet. 11



The Dryden Gold Corporation has done surface work on the
Trap TLake group of claima near Contact Bay.

The Contact Bay Mines, Ltd., operated the Rognon and
recovered a little gold with a smail testing mill. The Hognon
vein is oarrow but rich in places. These properties are at the
west end of Wablgoon lake and south of Dryden on the CFH.

Eagle Lake Gold Area

The Eagle Lake area includes a group of properties on
the southwesat aide of Eagle lake which is west of Wabipoon Lake
and south of the CPH. The lake touches the railway at Vermilion
station. The important gold-bearing veins, mostly narrow, are
in altered granite near its contact with greenstone. A number
af properties were developed detween 1903 and 1590T and small
amounts of bullion were produced, but the shafts sunk do not
seem to have gone deeper than about 1395 feet .

Lake of the Woods Gold Range

Gold deposition has taken place in a zmone of country
streteching easterly from the Manitoba boundary and including
Lake of the Woods, Eagle Lake, Webigoon Lake, Minnitaki Lake
and Sturgeon Lake, with the Manitou Lake area on its southern
edge, and the Savant Lake ares to the north of Sturgeon
Lake. The leéngth of the gold range is about 210 miles. The
country is underlain largely by keewatin rocks and sediment-
aries probably of Timiskamian age. These and Lhe accompanying
Laurentian gneisse are intruded by a younger granite, probably

AMgoman. The gold discoveries are clustered around the lakes,






doubtless because of t he easy transportation they afford. But
there is a large amount of territory with a favourable geclogy
between the lakes. This may yield results when prospected.

The areas along the range were prospected during the perioed from
about 1890 to 1905, and a great many 4 iscoveries were made.
Unfortunately for the success of gold mining in Northwestern
ntario, management in a great many cases was far from skillful.
Shafts were sunk on ghartz stringers when more surface pros—
pecting would have been the obvious course. Small stamp mills
were built before ore was blocked ocut to keep them running. The
great majority of t he properties have been properly abandoned
becanse surface indications and & shaft sunk 150 feet or ao did
not warrant further work. But others may have been closed

down because the money was all spent before the property had
bean developed to the producing stage. The fact that the depth
reached even in the most successfully operated gold mines of
Northwestern Ontario is mostly only a few hundred feeset may be
interpreted as indicating that in that region the gold deposits
are shallow. But it may also mean that more ski11ful mining
and larger capital are needed to push operations to greater
depths.

Iron in Kenora District

West of Lake St. Joseph is a range of iron formation over 5 miles
long. But ism "shows no commercial ore. About 12 miles south-—
west of Superior Junction and on the south side of Lake Minnintaki
iz v range of ron formation made up of silicious magnetite
interbanded with jasper and schist. Along the Wabigoon Riwver
near Dryden station on the CPR is a belt of iron formation. It

extends eastward for about nine miles. The avemge iron content
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of the megnetite beands is about thirty per cent. Hear Bending
Lake, 10 miles scuthwest of Haleigh station on theCFR is a belt
of iron formation striking northwest-southeast. Its length is
abou£ 10 miles and it contains bands of magnetite and hematite.
The Victoria Iron Range, 37 miles north of La Seine station on
the CPR may be & continuation of the Bending Lake range.

Identification of Terms:

Hematite: 70% iron, 30% oxygen-preferred because more porous,
reducing furnace gases penetrate hematite readily;
lower cost of smelting.

Fezﬂj.

Magnetite: 72.5% iron, 27.5% oxygen-dark grey-black fine

powder, gstrong (compass) magnetic attraction,

Easy to detect with compass

Fejﬂi.

Randed Formation: alternate bands of magnetite or hematite
with schists, jasper or silica; sedimentary origin

Mispickel: principle ore of arsenic, composition iron, sulphur
& arsenic, said to coccur in the Northern {Queen
Mine near Wabigoon.

Iron Pyrite: Sulphur content usually very high.

Northern Pyrites Mine, formerly called the Vermilion
Pyrite Mine and also the Michie Pyrite Mine, is situated on
the shore of Big Vermilion Lake, a few miles west of Sioux
Lookout on the Northern Transcontinental line of the CNR.

The deposit occupies a depression and is covered with boulder
clay from 8-20 feet deep. The gossan shows only on the lake
shore. The ore is solid pyrite with a little pyrrohotite and
gquartz. It assays 40% sulphur. The mine is owned by the
Nichols Chemical Co., which has taken out and shipped large

quantities of ore, conveying it by eerial tramway to a siding

on the CHER.
19



Famming Pyrite Preospect is on the shore of Big Vermilion
Lake, 8 miles west of the Northern Pyrites Mine. High grade
pyrite occurs in bands from 26 feet thick with bands of graphitic
shale. Bordings in the lake are said to have shown a width of

20 feet of high grade pyrite.
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BADEN POWELL MINE

The Baden Fowell mine was situated on mining
locations FM 16T, FM 168, as well as two others,
occupying the whole of S outh Twin ITsland on Eagle
Lake. Work here commenced Nowvember 3, 1900 under
the ownership and operation of J.A. Partington, E.
Appleton, 8. Pinchon and 35.8. Forneri. Stripping
was begun and No. 1 and 2 test pits were sunk to
depths of 10 feet and 4 feet by 330 feet long, res-—
pectively, along the veins. At this time the work-
ing force was merely two and the only building on
the site, a boarding house. What spurred interest
in this claim was the "uncommonly coarse grains”
of free gold found in the fine granular white guartsz
on the property.

In 1902, Inspector Miller of the Ontaric Depart-—
ment of Mines reported that development on the prop-
erty was proceeding under Mr. R.H. Ahn and that Lo
tons of ore had recently been run through the mill
at the Eldorado Mine, also on Eagle Lake. Results
must have proved encouraging as plans were made to
carry on continuous work throughout the winter months
also erecting a new boarding house (32 ft. sq.) and
the roads on the property were improwved.

The MNorthern Lights Mines Company acquired the
property in April of 1903, and work continued with a
total force of seven men managed by Mr. Higbee. Ac—
cording to Higbee, two mill runs of 28 tons at Eldor-
ado averaged ShO.00 per ton in gold. The men were
at this time, engaged in enlarging the open cut to
50 feet in length and the 35 feet in depth. Approx-
imately 200feet southwest of the cut, a new shaft,

6 feet by 8 feet, was sunk to 50 feet, however dur-
ing inspection, it was closed. New camp buildings

went up on the east side of the island as well as a

18



BADEN POWELL MINE
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new camp office near the workings.

By October of 1904 the former open trench had
been converted to the main shaft and was timbered
solidly throughout to the . dimensions of 6 feet by
9 feet down to 98 feet. The level at 60 feet drift-
ed to the north and to the south. Hoisting was done
by a bucket on skids and a duplex cylinder drum
hoist engine and 20 h.p. boiler in the adjoining
shed. Ventilation for workers was provided by a wood-
en pipe or box and a steam injector. A five stamp
mill was =2till being completed on the north side of
the island in 1904. The mill being about L0OO feet
north of the shaft, it was proposed that the ore be
trammed across from the shaft. The mill itself held
the usual power plant of gravity stamps, plates,
feeder and a T by 10 foot Jaw crusher with a 40 h.p.
return tubular boiler and a 25 h.p. horizontal engine
providing the power. |

During the wyear of 1904 the work force was en-—
larged to twelve men and the management and owners
remained the same.

In the annual mine report for 1 906 the mine
was simply stated to be in operation, however oper-
ations ceased after that year. Altogether, prod-
uction amounted tcﬁsi,ETS.UD for the Baden Powell

Mine. 20



BARKER BROTHERS MINE

The Barker Brothers Mine dates back to 1898 as
reported by James A. Bow, provincial mine inspector.
fﬁ ﬁaa located on the southern part of Lower Lake
Manitou and a Mr. Forbes managed the u;‘p-era.tiun' of
the two stamp Tremaine mill which ran only a few
months, working ore from a 50 foot deep shaft.

The life of this mine proved to be rather
short, as for the following year, 1899, all oper-
ations had ceased and only a caretaker remained
at the site. The sixty-two foot deep shaft was
water filled and the open cut was s bandoned at
one hundred feet long by four feet deep and three
feet wide. There was evidence of stripping and
blasting done at the other pits. With the stamp
mill shut dowm, the Gates crusher., horizontal
engine and return tubular boiler lay idle, and
the boarding house and camp bulildings remained
empty. The Barker Brothers Mine was never mention-
ed again in the annual mine report.
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BIG MASTER MINE

Big Master Mine was on of the better known mines
of the region and, next to the Laurentian, turned out
the highest gold production. The Big Master Property
inciuded mining locations HP 366, 376, 368, 369 and
373, comprising 200 acres in all, one mile south east
of Gold Rock on the upper end of Upper Manitou Lake.
Tn 1900 the mine went into operation owmed by Inter-
state Consolidated Mining Company. The company had a
capital of $T700,000.00 in $1.00 shares and was loc-
ated at 63 Erie County Bank Building in Buffalo, New
York. The Board of Directors included C. W. Stone,
president; Wm. Schaler, vice-president; M. Nellany.,
treasure; and M. A. Meyers, secretary, with Daniel
Simpson as general manager and engineer.

On the property itselff there were five parallel
veins, each proven by surface crosscuts and test pits
and in one case a shaft. At time of inspection in
1901, the shaft was reported as water filled but said
to be 50 feet deep, timbered down to 35 feet, 6 feet
by 8 feet in size and inclining a few degrees to the
east. The test pits on the property showed a grey
and white quartz wvein from 18 inches to 2 feet wide.
In September of 1900 a new main working shaft was
sunk on location HP 366 down to 55 feet and timbered
to measure S feet by 9 feet. Future plans at this
time proposed that the shaft go dowvn to 120 feet,
cutting a level at 100 feet and crosscutting to veins
which had been traced on the surface. The work con-
tract was let and mining to be resumed at once.

As far as working conditions went, sets of stulls
were being placed at 4 foot intervals down the shaft
to carry the casing for a cage, but until then hoist-
ing by bucket had to suffice. A Cameran pump suspend-
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Big Masteyr Mine



ed in the shaft proved adeguate for drainage.

In December of 1900 mining was temporarily sus=-
pended to install machinery at the new shaft houses.
Und@er the roof of on bullding exlisted the engine and
boiler rooms, on the east side, and machine shop on
the north side. The 18 feet by 30 feet by 35 feet
high building held a 40 h.p. return tubular boiler,
a single drum T by 10 inch double cylinder hoist with
250 feet of 5?8 inch steel rope and a 5 drill Rand
alr compressor and receiver. Also on hand were five
Rand drills, machine shop outfit and a cage for the
shaft. Located 100 feet west of the shaft the pump
house sat over the well with a small snﬁw'duplex pump
raising water for the boiler and other purposes. The
"ary" room, where the miners changed after working
in the dampness of the shaft, was situated over the
boiler. It was fitted with baths, washing outfits.
hot and cold water. Being approachable only from
the shaft house, its walls, roof and floors were com-
pletely lined with sheet tin to insure fire proof-
ness from inside, "against the danger of a possible
conflagration from the miner's candled"™, In the top
of the bullding and over slde of the shaft a water
storage tank had been built, 6 feet by 12 feet by S5k
feet, and used during previous operations. However,
during the mining inspection of 1900 instructions were
glven to remove it to a safe place.or discontinue its
use.

The new mine had on order a 10 stamp mill from
Frager and Chalmers of Chicageo and in its anticipat-
ion, had stone cribbing in place for a mill building.

o 4.



A saw mill recently purchased by the company was
not yet set up, at the +t ime of government Inspection,
but in the future it would supply lumberfor the remain-
ing camp buildings. Buildings on the premises in 1500
included the shaft house, pump station, blacksmith
shop, store and ice houses, boarding camp, office, stable,
and explosive magazine. The totel work forece number
thirty-five miners, not yet engaged in mining, under
the supervision of Foreman John Joy.

When Inspector Carter toured the B ig Master in
1902, he found it to be in active operation with the re-
mainder of the surface plant now completed and future

plans to develop the two main veins. So as to bring the
mine quieckly into good shape, management had "unususl
methods adopted of payving high western wages and working
eight hour shifts." This accounted for the rapidity in
sinking the main shaft. Original plans to haul ore
from the mine to the mill by wagons, a total distance of
one guarter mile, were dropped at the last moment and a
Hallidre asrial tram waa to be inztalled for this fune-
tion. Additional machinery was to be in place and
ready for work by July last of 1902 when crushing in the
new mill was plonned to begin. A change in management
brought a Mr. W. H. Pickering in as mew manager and Mr.
Shovells was foreman over a totmal force of btwenty-—-Iive
men, fourteen of who were miners. In changing hands
the business alse acquired an additional one hundred
acres of adjoining property.

For 1902 the mine reported that the main shaft
had been sunk to 1TO feet at the dimensions of 5 feet by
9 feet and that No. 2 shaft had reached 99 feet. The
old test pit "Helena", one half mile north east of the
maln shaft, was continued down to 52 feet at $ feet by
8 feet but had since been abandoned. The stamp mill had
teen completed in November of 1901, and a pumping station
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was to be built on the lakeshore in front of the stamp
mill., The saw mill, then in operation, was alsc locat-
ed on the lakeshore and averaged 10,000 feet per day
capacity, cutting lumber for numerous mine buildings,
and more recently, two private dwellings new to the camp.

For November of 1902, it was reported that Big
Master was still owned by Interstate Consolidated with
Mr. W. A. Blackstone of Jamestown, New York as president
and that the oly change of persconel had been Mr. Harry
Hook, the new assayer. The men now employed totalled
forty-two, twelwve being miners.

The main shaft was only 15 feet deeper than last
inspection and the aerial tramway from the mine to
the mill was now completed. The Helena shaft remained
unchanged, but there was a new assay office and other
buildings added. There had been no further develop—
ment on the big east vein because the present plant was
not adapted to treat ore which was o f refractory nature.
The gold was occcuring in pyrite and being extracted by
the cyanide process. In closing the report, Miller
noted that the stamp mill was not running at the time
of the wvisit because of lack of fuel and that the ore
of last season was sald to have given high returns.

Inspector Carter wrote, in September of 1903,
that W. Bhovells was acting manager over approxi-
mately thirty men and + hat the mine foreman was Malcom
Speer and mill foreman G. R. Vary. There were two
separate mill runs made in the fall of 1902, each of
16 days length. From each of these, the manager claimed
to have produced $£5,000 in bullion. Since May of 1903
the mill had run continuously but the mine was idle
from January to April, however since then it had been
more or less active. All the ore had been removed
from the shaft and once a continuous mill run was under
way, it was expected that with such a small amount of
ore to process, the mill would soon be foreced down.
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It was obvious to t he inspector, if not the
mAanagement, that a more businesslike plan of develop-
ment in blocking out the ore in advance, was needed.

As far as the camp went in 1903, the surface plant
remained unchanged except for the additon of a board-
ing house and one private dwelling.

From January 1lst of 1904, owing to financial dif-
ficulties, the Big Master mine lay idle. FBondholders
had foreclosed on the former owners, Interstate Con-
solidated, bid on the property and formed themselwes
into the Big Master Mining Company. The president
was Benjamin Hammond and the offices were located at
Fishkill-on-Hudson, New York, and Gold Rock, Ontario.
W. Shovells was still in charge and a few men had com—
menced renovating machinery and strengthening the
head frame over the shaft with the intention of re-
suming mining soon. Additional plant by way of pumps,
air drills and hoist was to be installed alsoc. Recent
assays on the larger east vein had returned $8.35 per
ton in gold.

After being idle for over a year, the property
resumed work in April of 190% and was worked continuous-—
1y until January Lth, 1906 and then closed again. Dur-
ing that periocd, the main shaft was sunk another 100
feet for a total depth of 285 feet, but no work was
done on the lst and 2nd levels. ©On the 3rd level a
drift of 110 feet to the north east was worked and raised
to the 2nd level. A crosscut easst was closed off before
the wein was reached.

The ten stamp mill ran 83 days producing §9,800,
the ore being taken from between the 2nd and 3rd levels.

For the report of 1907, it was said that no work
had been done since the last inspection. and by 1910
the shaft was water filled and Mr. A Kay was the only
person remaining on the property, employed as caretaker.
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BONANZA MINE

The Bonanza claim was staked by the Contact Bay Mines
Limited on the north east guarter of the south half of lot
seven concession one Van Horne Township. The 15 foot deep
shaft had two compartments and thirteen men worked there
under the supervision of E. S. Henlye.

OCn the claim property there was a log power house and
a blacksmith's shop built. The power was supplied by a
Rand & inch by 8 inmeh air ¢ ompressor, gas or kerosene
driven, that had Just been set up in December of 1919,

In 1920 prospecting continued on the Bonanzs claim,
but work stopped on the last day of the year to be resumed
in the spring. That year t here were twenty-two men employ-
ed at Bonanza with Mr. Henlye remaining in charge, and a
Mr. Badger acting as foreman. For 1920 the shaft reached
88 feet.

The Bonanza shut down operations on December 3Ilst,
1921, again to resume work in the spring.

On March S9th, 1922 the shaft had reached down to 17O
feet with drifting at the B0 foot lewel, to the east and
west. Also at the 160 foot level more drifting was in
progress. Badger left the employ of Contact Bay Mines in
March of 1922 leaving E. R. Bognon as managing director.
The superintendant, Mr. Henlye resigned the following
September and was succeeded by Charles W. Riley.

For the next year, 1923, work was stepped up consid-
erably and by 1924, the shaft had & third level at 2658
feet, where a station was cut and a hoist installed for
further sinking.

In 1923, the FRedeemer stamp mill was put into op-
eration at Bonanza and the ore treated there. Water for
milling purposes was pumped from the R edeemer workings.
Production went downhill from there, howewver. On June Z2lst
1929, it was reported in the Dryden Obserwver that no new

geological maps or reports were to be made of the ares and
that mines both at Contact Bay and on Lake Manitou were

struggling for surviwval. 28



The Buffalo Mine, as mentioned in the report of
Inspector Carter for September of 1903, was located
on the west shore of Eagle Lake between the Eldorado
and Grace mines. It was ovmed by t he Northern Lights
Mine Company and, during the summer months considerable
amounts of exploratory mining under the charge of Mr.
Higbee was undertaken. There were several camp
buildings on and near the shore. i

The mining work itself consisted of a tunnel
driven 30 feet west crosscutting the lode, and then
following it south west for 78 feet or more. Located
558 feet west of the tunnel was No. 1 shaft, 28 feet
vertical and south west of this,.a pit 15 feet deep
called No. 2 shaft. Whatever future this mine had
was uncertaln in 1903, as mining had ceased previous

to the Inpector's visit.



CLARK GOLD MINES

The Clark gold mines were quite profitable in the late
thirties, R. S, Douglas was the manager at that time.

On December 20th 1935, the Clark Gold Mines reported
that they received a new shipment of drilling and drift-
ing equipment with which to improve the mining possibilities.
On Mareh 20th, they reported to the Dryden Observer that
they had sunk to a new depth of one hundred and ten feet.
This was bettered at the end of the same month with a
further drilling to one hundred and twenty-five feet.

On August 28th of 1936, the Observer reported that an
additional mining plant was to be purchased by the Clark
Gold Mines, E.M. McLean being the = ponsor.

April 16th 1937 brought a report thatClark CGold had
made a new discovery at a deeper level. The shaft was to

go down to three hundred and seventy-five feet, and by
September of 1937, the men reported the installation of their
new hoist.

The Clark Gold Mines were situated on Tabor Lake and
first staked by Tabor and Stevenson in 1897.

On April 2Lth 1936, the Observer said that the results
of an exploration into the merits of the Clark Gold Mines
had proven the mine successful. Credit for the success of
the mine was given to Bob Clark, the resident engineer.
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CRACKER JACK MINE

) The Cracker Jack mine was located on the south
shore of a long arm(known as the Manitou Stretch)

of Lower Lake Manitou, about ten miles from the main
body. In October of 1899, the property was owned
by the Cracker Jack Gold Mining Company Limited,
Walter J Keating of Fort Frances, mine manager.

The only work done on this location was during
the summer months of 1899 and involved the sinking
of two shafts, 40 and U5 feet deep on two different
veins. The Ontario Department of Mines was informed
in writing by Mr. Keating that a third shaft had been
sunk to 19 feet.
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DETOLA MINE

The Detola Development Company commenced work on
a location adjoining the Pay master mine to the north
east, in the spring of 1906. The shaft at that time

was sunk to ST feet deep and then work was abandoned
for the winter.

In the year 1907, the miners were engaged in
developing a quartz vein on Location HW 411, one half
mile east of the Laurentian mine. The shaft here
was sunk to 60 feet and was found to ¢ arry consid-
erable iron pyrite. A twenty horse power boiler and
hoist was installed and camp buildings erected on the
shores of Mud Lake. Mr. Bliss, president of the
company, was in charge of t he operations.

Development work continued during 1908. Mr. G.
RE. Earley was the superintendant while the main shaft
was deepened to 105 feet, and a new head frame and
power plant was installed. The power was supplied
by two 50 horse power return tubular boilers, a 3
drill straight line compressor and a 10 inch by 12
inch reversible hoist. At the time of inspection
the shaft was being retimbered and preparations were
being made to sink the workings to a greater depth.

Inm 1910, the superintendant was Mr. Dryden Smith
and the shaft was then down to 235 feet. There was a
second level and crosscuts being developed. The ten
gtamp mill at the mine was built on the shore of Mud
Lake in the summer of 1910 as well as a tramway from
the shaft to the mill.

The Detola was last mentioned in the report
for 1912 at which time,.it was said that the vein

carried $12 per ton in gold.



EAGLE LAKE GOLD LOCATTON

Situated on an island two miles south west of
South Twin Island in Eagle Lake, the BEagle Lake Gold
Location was in operation most of 190L. The owners
and operators were the Eagle Lake Gold Mining Company,
Manager of Operations, Mr. Higbee, of Rat Portage.

The first year the shaft was sunk to 60 feet with
the dimensions of 5 feet by 8 feet. At the first
level there was a north west drift 28 feet and a south
west drift 28 feet, both of t hese drifts being b feet
by T feet. For the 1901 inspection mining was conly
taking place in the drifts.

A rough shaft house was constructed and hoisting
was carried out by hand windlass and bucker.

The guartz found at the Eagle Lake Gold Location
varied from white to pink and contained very little
pyrite. In closing his report, Bow said that in
February of 1901 the working force numbered five men
and the only building on the property was a boarding

house.



ELDORADD MINE

The Eldoradeo, as mentioned in the mine report of
1901, was located on a point on the south west end of
Eagle Lake. That year it was not inspected but the
information was given to the Department of Mines by the
owner and operator, Mr. E. Gatensbury of Rat Portage.

The MAorkings consisted of an.' o pen trench
along the guartz vein to a length of TO feet and 20
feet deep at the face. In the summer of 1900, a
two stamp mill with amalgamation plates was installed
and during September, all the rock from the cut was
being treated. At this point funds ran out and work
was suspended with no definite plans for the future.

In 1902 +the mine was operating again and the
shaft was at 31 feet. There were sleeping and cook
camps not far from the mill, but t he inspector that
yvear Tound that they badly needed a powder house and
arrangements to that effect were being made.

The mine was now co-owned and a small LO foot
steamer, the Caro, brought in the supplies from the
railway to the twelve employees. Under the laws of
Arizona, the Northern Lights Mines Company was incorp—
orated in 1902 and at that time took over many of the
mines on Bagle Lake, the Eldorade included. President
of + he company was Joseph E. Gavin and secretary was
W. H. Barnhart, both of Buffalo. HNewton Higbee of Rat
Portage was the newly appointed superintendant.

Inspector Carter reported that mining had ceased
since the beginning of 1903 when the shaft was sunk
at the mouth of the original open cut to a depth of
60 feet continuing along a vein at an incline of 103°
north west. Most of the ore had been milled at the
camp's stamp mill using the the two 1,000 pound stamps,
amalgamation table and 20 horse power boiler. ©On the

other side of the point in a sheltered bay, was locat~~
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the camp site. This consisted of living and board-
houses, and office and two private dwellings. N. Hig-
bee remained the general manager for the company in
charge.

For 190k ,Carter reported that T he Eldorado was
taken over by yet another ¢ ompany, incorporated under
the laws of Ontarioc. This company, the Eldorado
Mining Company, was headed by Walter D. Green, presi-
dent, and W.A. Barnhart, secretary, and the mining
site was supervised by Mr. Higbee.

Mining re—-commenced June of 190k with a work force
of eight. The shaft was now re-timbered with a ladder-
way and skid road for a bucket. The total depth was
95 feet with a level at TO feet that swung south
west 53 feet. The shaft was covered with a headframe
and there a hoist rope continued 100 feet, or more, to
a new hoisting engine. The plans were that the first
level was to continue along the wein south west for
150 feet to meet a connecting wvein. In 1904 there was
no milling carried out but there were plans to start
on the accumalated ore in a few weeks time while the
inspector was there.

For 1905, work began in October under the super—
wvision of Mr. 8.5. Forneri, after being suspended for
the greater part of the year. Nine men were employed
in developing and exporation work. The shaflft then
measured 140 feet, increasing a depth of 55 feet. A
ladderway was also put in, dividing the shaft from the
hoistway to the first level. There was a second lewvel
at 120 feet that drifted north east 25 feet. The mine
was serviced by a two stamp mill then occupied in a
run on ore f{rom development work.

The mine ran for the better part o f 1906 but by
1910 the shaft, at time of inspection, was water filled
and no-one remained at the property. The last infeorm-—

ation received said the shaft was sunk 20 feet deeper.
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FOULIS PROPERTY

The Foulis property was 1 ocated on Upper
Lake Manitou eight miles seuth west of Gold Rock.
In 1910, Inspector Corkill of the Department
of Mines, reported t hat J.C. Foulis was engaged in
prospecting. A shaft had been sunk to a depth
of L0 feet and a two stamp mill was taken in just
before freeze-up in the fall of 1909. As it was
late in the season for beginning anything,work was
suspended and future plans were made to open the
location on a larger scale. The property never did

reach any major development proportions.



GIANT MINE

Known originally as locations HW Th and 75, this
mine was located rear the end of Moser Bay on the east
side o f Upper Lake Manitou, about five miles socuth &1
Gold Rock. Tt was operated under option by Paul Paulson
who was in charge of digging several test pits and
trenches and sinking one shaft 25 feet deep. A tunnel
was cut in from the foot of a hill, 50 feet below the
shaft, and directed towards it and a crosscut tunnel
wase driven in also. The latter tunnel was h0O feet of
open cub.

The mine inspector adwvised that the handling of
dynamite was very careless as t here was no powder
magazine built and powder was left lying around without
shelter, ocutside of the blacksmith'’s shop. The thawing
of the dynamite was conducted by placing the dynamite
around the stove of % he blacksmith shop. It was sug-
gested that the state of affairs be remedied immediately.

The locations were taken over by the Giant Gold
Mining Company by November of 1902, employing twelve
men, nine of these were miners. The shaft was then dowm
to 50 feet and the ¢ unnel reached 100feet intec the hill-
gide. Machinery was placed at the shaft and the camp,
three hundred yards distant by the shore of the bay., was
comprised of a two storey office, a dining hall, kitchen
and barn. The dry room was located at the shaft, as was
the blacksmith's shop, and since the last inspection, =&
new dynamite house had been built.

By September of 1903 a new 1 ocation was added to
the Giant Mine; adjoining to the east. The owners re-
mained the same with P. Paulson supervising a force of
seven men. The shaft reached to 212 feet inclining 80°
west. The First level, at 200 feet, did not follow the
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obvious pay vein, but shot off towards another. The shaft
had timbers down to W0 feet and a ladderway partitioned
from the hoistway. These ladders extended without plat-
forms from the top of the shaft to the bottom. The open
head frame carried the sheave for t he bucket hoisting
cable, which at that time,ran to the adjoining hoist house.
The new camp at the location contained an office, bunk
houses and a boarding house built on the newly acquired
adjoining location, HW 185,

In 190k the point of operation at Giant mines shifted
back to location HW T5. The shaft on HW 185 had not given
sufficient pay rock to warrant further expenditure. The
mining plant, had been transported, in part, over to the
lake shore below the old tunnel]l and set up with a one
stamp Nissen mill to make small test runs. The other
camp remained at its original location and was still in use
in 190L. Mining at the o0ld shaft resumed in June of that
year, reaching 18 feet under the tunnel and past it. Here
the vein filled the walls as much as 16 feet wide, composed
of gquarte, calecite and ¢ hlorite with a high pyrite content.
From these workings, a surface tram road Jjoined up with
the stamp mill.

The last year , 1904, the mine was mentioned in the
government reports P. Paulson was still the supervisor

in charge of six men.



GLASS REEF MINE

The Glass Reef mine had been in continuous operation
for over a Year when it was first mentioned in the Ontario
Department of Mines Report for 1901l. Very fine and com-
plete hoisting machinery and treating plant was erccted,
but on December 22, 1900, after about two months mill
testing of rock from the mine workings., everythin closed
down. No work was done after that date.

The shaft went down to 200 feet at the dimensions of
T feet by 1k feet. There was a first level st Th feet
that drifted south west 300 feet and was cross cut from
The face. A tunnel south cast inte the hillside measured
28 rfeet in length with the last L0 feet being an open
cut. At 12 feet in, the tunnel's roof raised to a height
of 4S5 feet and from the top of this another drift, south
west © feet, went on another 45 feet in a drift north west
28 feet. More work was done extensively at the second
level at 176 feet. The Shaft divided inte three compart-
ments: a laddervway, & hoistway and a spare. It was
collared, or timbered, dowm to 35 feet.

Hoisting wazs by bucket with a cross head guide bar,
and drainage was effective by a No. 5 Cameron sinking
pump and pumps from sumps on the first lewvel.

The drifts and crosscuts were found to be unsatis-
factory as only scattered stringers seldom were found
larger than one and a half feet wide and had no apparent
continuity.

The shaflt house was 25 feet by 30 feet and fitted in-
side with chutes leading to waste dumps andslso contained
an ¢re bin, below which was located a terminal station.for
a surface gravity tram leading to the stamp mill 600 feet
north on the lake shore. Cars entered beneath the gate of
the bin and the ore was loaded there.

Twenty feet south west of the shaft house was situated
the engine house, containing a horizontal returner tubular
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a double cylinder hoist with 5/8 inch steel rope and a 3
drill Rand air compressor. An extension of the building
included a blacksmith shop and a machine shop and dry
room. The tram car left the shaft house and passed on
trestle over a 150 foot wide ravime. The trestle, itselfl
was built with three steel rails laid on an easy inecline.

In the stamp mill was a Fraser and Chalmers process-—
ing plant, consisting of ten 1,000 pound stamps, challenge
ore feeder, amalgamation plates and a Brown four compart-—
ment classifier, thre Frue vanners., one with corrugated
belt, and the crusher. All of this was operated by an 85
horse power 12 inch by 12 inch steam engine. The housing
was large enough for a twenty stamp mill but the mine
folded before even the ten stamp mill was put to full use.

Horth east of the stamp mill was located a sawmill
that provided lumber for the buildings., among which was
found a mine office, an assay office, boarding camps, four
private dwellings, a warehouse and stables.

While the mine was working the work force totaled
eighty-four men, thirty-three of them being miners. The
property was left in charge of Mr. Ross and three others
and it was said that as soon as more money was raised,
there would be a contiuation of work in sinking the shaft
further and developing the underground explorations in
hopes of finding new ore.

The following year, 1901, the Glass Reef was still
closed down but the directors were planning to place an-—
other block of shares on the market in hopes of securing
gsufficient capital to carry on work that year, not only
on the ordginal location but also on the adjoining one.
The mine inspector found the e xpectation of finding ore
thoroughly uwunwarranted considering the e xtensive deve-
lopment and failure of the previcus year.

The stamp mill at Glass Reef was used by the Royal
Sovereign mine to treat 23 tons o f the ore produced there
and the saw mill was in operation o ff and on, supplying
lumber to nearby mines. George Glass was left in charge of
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For the Glass Reef Mine that opened up in 1899 with
a capital of $£750,000.00, the end came all too gquickly.
The mill was sold to the Detola mine and A. L. Parsons
referred to the Glass Reef as a mine "whose history is
finished." Its site on the mainland south of Beaverhead
Island on Lower Lake Manitou remains, with all the others,

a ghostly wvision of the Manitou's past.
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GOLD MOOEE MINE

The Gold Moose mine was 1ocated one mile west
of the Hermann and Larson property, six miles south of
Dryden, on lot eight concession one Van Horne township.
The portion of the property under development in 1902
was the west half of the south one hundred and forty
acres. The owners were R.D. & H.G. Hutchison, J. G.
Hammond, all of Dryden, and C.J. Seih of New Sharon,
Towa.

Work began in October of 1901 and continued, inter-—
mittently until April fourth 1902, at which time it was
inspected. The shaft was 6L feet deep and 6 fect by
8 feet, timbered for the first 20 feet and inclined T2®
north with wall plates, skid poles and ladders without
platforms or partition between the two compartments.

The first level at 62 feet, was the only level and
it was planned that further sinking of the shaft would
be resumed with a total work force of four men after
April of 1902, The hoisting was done by hand windlass,
bucket and hemp rope, with no mining machinery installed.
There was a blacksmith shop, stable and bunkhouse situated
on the property and that coming season in 1902, there
was to be eepescted hoisting and air ¢ ompressor plants
with a power and shaft house. The Hutchison Brothers
reported that in February of 1902, a mill test of 6T
tons of ore at the Keewatin Reduction Works gave satis-
factory results.

The results, however satisfactory, proved to be
holding false hopes for the future of the Gold Moose mine.
The next time it was mentioned was 1910, being written
off as idle at the time of inspection. It has been idle
aeyer since, i‘ T



GOLD STANDARD MINE

On the scuth seventy acres of location G340 and ad-—
Joining the Sairey Gamp mine, the Gold Standard Mining
Company began work on its first mining endeavor. The
company , with head office in Morris, South Dakota, was
run by Judge C. L. Brown, president, H.L. Smith, vice-
president, H.J.Hall, treasurer, and general managers
W.F. Cooley and Anton Watske. The property was said teo
carry a guartz wvein that was to be worked first and if
it did not turn out valuable, a second claim was to be
turned over and likewise, & third.

In the fall of 1900 a forece of seven miners super-
vised by Paul Gasse began to work the first wein. Gasse
was also supervisor of fthe Sairey Gamp where the men
from Gold Standard shared living quarters.

The claim was developed until December of 1901 and
the shaft reached 150 feet with 20 feet of drifting. At
that €ime, because ol inadeguate hand supplies, it was
"deemed advisable to suspend operations until suitable
machinery could be obtained."

By September of 1903 the point of operations were
chenged to one mile away on the north west side of Helson
Lake, A steamboat ran down the Manitou Lakes about 35 miles
from Gold Rock to a short portage on the wswest side of
Lower Manitou and from there one had to Jjourney by cance Ltwo
miles further to the mine. Mr. E. E. Hall managed sixteen
men in QOctober of 1902 and a camp was built in preparation
for the shift of operations. They raised a bunk house,
office, stable and hoist house, as well as laying a road
between Sairey Ganp and Nelson Lakes. The water was raised
21-22 feet that year by a dam at an outlet onto Manitou Lake,
for better navigation.

The shaft reached a depth of 95 feet, collared to 15
feet by wood to measure 6 feet by 9 feet. EBEelow that
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square frames carrying partions belween two compartments
and a ladderway hung down 50 feet. The first level was
at 80 feet, and in 1902 mining was confined to sinking
that shaft. Both sides of the shaft were on outcrops of
a quartz vein, on which test pits had been sunk from 6
feet to 15 feet deep. The head frame above + he workings
was 12 feet high and open. Hoisting was done by bucket
and operated from an’ adjoining hoist house by a small
engine and a 30 horse power boiler. There was never
very much known of the vein's size or wvslue, and even
to the extent that it was developed it never proved
valuable,
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GOLDEN EAGLE MINE

The Golden Eagle Mine passed through the hands of
several owners, being developed a little by each. The
property was about to revert to its original owner in
1903, Mr. N, Higbee, and it was said that if it did it
would probably underge more continuous and systematic
mining than before. In August of 1903, twenty nine tons
of ore was run through at + he Eldorade mill, producing

307.50 in gold, or 10.60 per ton, according to the
manager's statement.

Mr. Higbee finally did re-acquire the property
and work was planned to continue the T5 foot deep shaft.
Hﬂwever,‘the work did not last long and after an
extension of the drifting was carried out mining was

suspended permanently at the Golden Bagle.
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GOLDEN PARK MINE

The Golden Park Mining Company owned the south
forty-two acres of lot 5, concession two and the south
east thirty-five acres and south west forty acres of
lot 6, concession two of Van Horne Township. The
superintendant, Alex McPhail, managed the workings
on a shaft that only reached a depth of 37 feet and
a second shaft on the second lot that reached L0 feet.
It was said that the latter shaft was sunk on a vein
that was 6 feet wide. All this was r eported in
1907 and by 1910, the work on this location had

ceggsed entirely.

48



3 - t h l'l:lii|-1.lI uf ‘th¢ ggﬁlﬂg}' in the uumty of .iﬂ_. ha_gh— -
. m:.ﬁtt‘mn: qua,rn g oo 0T ER fe



GRACE MINE

In November of 1902 it was reported by Inspector
Miller that the Grace Mine was being worked by a small
force of men in the autumn of 1901 and that work on
the property consisted of a tunnel into a hillside and
a fifteen foot shaft.

The mine was 1 ocated on the west side of Eagle
Lake and owned by the Grace Mining Company Limited of
Ridgeway, Ontario and Buffalo, NHew York. The president
and manager wad J. H. Casslor, mine foreman was R. McKin-
gtry and the work force totalled five men. Work progres-
ged fairly steadily for 1902 and 1903. The camp was on
the lakeshore and No. 1 shaft was a few hundred feet back
from the shore on a hill. Tt was 28 feet deep in 1903
and measured 6 feet by 9 feet. A mill test of three tons
in 1903 was said to have given #83.00 per ton on the plates.
It was speculated that this was possible bul the question
was would the mine warrant further development work on
so small an ore body.

The second shaft, No. 2, was 96 feet south west of
No. 1 and was 29 feet deep, measuring 6 feet by 9 feet,
also. The tunnel that had been driven into the hill near
the lake reached in 128 feet, with crosscuts at the face.
The camp was & boarding housge, bunk house, office, stable,
ete., and a dock was built on the lake.

By 1904 the shaft, No. 1, had been sunk to 55 feet
but from the first of 190h mining had been suspended.
During the next while, the lower portion of the shaft was
allowed to £fill with water and no new developments were
made on the ore body. The four men working the lot in
that wyear, were busy retimbering the shaft into two comp-
artments before mining was to be resumed. Close to the
lakeshore foundations were layed for the new power house
and plant that was planned to0o be constructed. The only

real news for 1904, was the installation of a new engine
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in the company launch. ! that serviced the camp from
Vermilion Bay. Mining operations were planned to
resume in December of 1 905.

Work did resume in December of 1905 but there
was ashutdown in February of 1906, During that time
the shaft was deepened ten feet making a total depth
of 65 feet. The tunnel was a quarter of a mile from
the shaft and had been driven in 100 feet. During
the time of work a new gallows frame was put up over
the shaft and an 85 horse power boiler and a 14 horse
power hoist were installed. The boiler house was 300
feet from the shaft and a ten stamp mill was purchased
and transported in from Vermilion Bay. The Grace Mine
Company still owned the property in 1906 and twelve
men were employed under J. H, Casler, the manager.

After putting in new machinery in the winter of
1906, little work was done on the Grace mine and it
lay idle, in charge of a caretaker, for several years.
The mine was not mentioned further in the annual mine
reports until 1911 when it was noted that the camp was
very comfortable for the men but that operations had
ceased.

In the autumn of 1920 workmen were engaged in
preparing the buildings and plant of the Grace in
anticipation of further work. The Grace Mining Company
Limited was, at that time, owned by business men in
Fort Erie, Ontario and Buffalo, New York. The man in
charge of operations at the Grace was Captain Walpole
Roland of Kenora, a veteran of the Crimea, Indian
Mutiny, the Chinese Expedition and the American Civil
War.

The mine was worked for nine months that year
and Captain Roland was succeeded by Will. J. Richards,
also of Kenora, in June of 1921, Work was discontinued

on December 15 of 1921 when the shaft reached 187 feet.
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In the summer of 1922, eight men under the super-
vision of W. J. Richards were employed in trencing at
the Grace and no underground work was done. It was
noted that the results obtained from No. 1 shaft the
previous year were not encouraging and future plans were
vague,

The company abandoned work in 1922 and in 1923
commenced work on a soapstone deposit on two adjoining
claims to the north of the property. More camp accomo-
dations were built and small amounts of the stone, in
12 x 12 x 18 inch blocks, 35 in all, were shipped out
for test purposes. These blocks were used in lining
the Kraft furnace of the Dryden Pulp Mill and prowved
to be of satisfactory guality.

Since the results were so promising, a new plant
was built consisting of a b0 horse power return tubular
boiler, a two drill compressor, a double drum derrick
hoist, Sullivan channeler, a Hearst frame and a Patch
gang saw capable of handling blocks 13 x 8 x 6 feet.

They alsc built a dock at the guarry and another at
Vermilion Bay on the CPR.

Stripping showed the deposit to be sixty feet wide
with vertical walls and over six hundred feet long. In
1924 the company had a capital of $£5,000,000.000 in shares
of $1.00 par value and owned 1,600 acres. Additions were
made to the building and two more gang saws were instal-
led, along with a diamond saw for cutting small blocks.
Seven to nine men were employed in the summer of 1924 and
one shipment of 40 block (12 x 12 x 18) for Kraft mill
use had been made. One other shipment had been leost in
the sinking of a scow.

In 1925, the Grace shipped out three cars of socap—
stone for Kraft mill use and in 1925, 110 tons of the
stone were sawn and marketed to Ontario mills. For the
final year of opertion, 1927, Grace marketed approximately
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135 tons of sawn soapstone and sent these off to mills
in Dryden and Winnipeg. After the work done in 1927
little was heard of the Grace Mine and, for reasons
unkown, the mine ceased operation after that year.
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IDEAT, GOLD MINRE

The TIdeal Gold Mine was located six miles south
of Dryden in the Van Horne Township. The owner of the
Ideal was the Ideal Gold Mining Company of Baltimore.
Mr. Burton was appointed manager of the work.

The shaft was sunk 89 feet and drifted north at the
bottom 20 feet in the dimensions of T feet by 12 feet.
The shaft was closely cribbed to 35 feet but there was
no real suitable ladderway or divisions. Trenching on
the surface uncovered two veins and cross cutting was
done on these at the 85 foot level in hopes of encount-
ering them.

The mine was serviced by an experimental stamp mill:
a Charles Wallace.”" At this time in 1906 this was said
to be an’ "improved stamp mill™ that had a five ton cap-
acity every 24 hours. The mill combined crushing and
grinding and its plates were narrow,arranged in a series
of eight feet for the pulp to pass over. HNo reports
were received on how effective the mill was.

An outerop of the wvein occured 87 feet above the
nearby lake and there a site was cleared to erect a stamp
mill. The mill was to be erected when the property
warranted it, however that time never came. The mine
was closed the following year, 1907 and the ten men
employed at the Ideal Mine moved on to work in other
parts of the territory.
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JUBILEE MINE

In 1897 there were sixteen men working under W. M.Caldwell,
mine supervisor, at the Jubilee. That year the shaft was
sunk to 62 feet with drifting at the 50 foot level to the
north and south. The mine shut down shortly after this
as the ore tested was found to be too low grade to be remum-
erative. This was disappointing news as the wvein looked
very good.

The mine, located at the head of Trafalgar bay in Upper
Lake Manitou, was reopened around 1911 and the & feet by 10
feet shaft was sunk to seventy-five feet. The power plant
was a single cylinder compressor with a capacity of four
drills. The compressor, receiver and hoister were installed
at the site but the boiler was left at the portage.

No camp buildings were erected on the location and it
was just as well:; the mine closed down shortly after its

second opening.
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KING EDWARD MINE

The King Edward mine was situated on mining location
HW 171, comprising 240 acres west of the upper end of Low-
er Lake Manitou, bordering on Carlton and Trout lakes.

The property was acquired by English capitalist re-
presented in Canada by F. Bolton of Wabigoon.

In September of 1903, six men were extensively explor-
ing surface showings of quartz. They had been doing so
since June that summer and had sunk many test pits and
ernss cuts. At the time of government inspection in 1903,
all work had ceased waiting to be resume in the comming
year, when it was expected that a definite plan of com-
prehensive development would have been decided upon.

One log shanty constituted the camp. The wein itself
turned up wvery little free gold and the few samples assayed
were insufficient to form a realistic wvalue of the wvein
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LAST CHANCE MINE

Work was started on this location in 1913 by Messrs.
Beck, Kay and Smith. The wvein caried in width from four
to eight feet and was stripped for a considerable dis-
tance and several test pits were sunk.

The Last Chance Mine's story is very short, like
many area mining hopefuls, and nothing more was heard of

it after 1913.
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LAURENTIAN MINE

The Laurentian mine was located on mining location
HF 371, about 52 acres one half mile by road west of Gold
Rock. The owners were the Laurentian Mining Company of
L3 Tremont Street, Boston and Toronto. They were incorp-
orated under the laws of Ontario; president, Anthony
Blum, secretary, John Molath of Boston, and mine super-
visor, Dryden Smith. The total work force in 1904 number-
ed twenty-one. They also worked additional locations
HW 248, 252, 255, 256, 257.

Operations commenced in October of 1903. On the camp-
site stood a power house, dynamite magazine, oil shed,
machine and blacksmith s hops, assay office, dry house, cook
camp, sleeping camp, mine office and three separate
dwellings and stables. Foundation for the stamp mill was
also put down in the fall on 1904 and mining and milling
plants (20 stamp) had been transported to the camp.

The first shaft was sunk to 220 feet, being inclined
at 80° east and measuring 7 feet by 11 feet. At first
there was only one level at 80 feet that drifted north
and south. The surface vein had been stripped in several
places of the shaft and this could be seen. The shaft was
collared and a temporary head frame built, but there were
no timbers below that and no ladders below the level. On
his inspection,the government officer gave instructions to
safen the shaft according to the Mines Act and not to allow
riding in the bucket. Hoisting was done by temporarily
placed boiler and hoisting engine and a bucket on skids.
The men also needed to take better care of the explosives.

The sinking was following a small dark guartz vein
and free goldwas encountered in places, and it was noted
that other veins on t he property 1 ocked profitable.

57



By 1906, twenty-five men were employed at the Laurentian
twelve of these being miners. Work had been suspended for
part of 1905 pending a property transfer to the then present
owner, Anthony Bilum, from the former owners, the Laurentian
Mining Company. A very rich strike had been encountered on
the first level near the beginning of the year, that caused
a renewed interest in the districet and the property.

The shaft reached 271 feet, which was an increase of
%1 feet since the last inspection. In the south drift cross
cut a No. 9 Cameron pump pumped the water from the first
level and from the level below to the surface. On the sec-—
ond level, at 200 feet, there cccurred a drift to the north
for 89 feet. Fxtensive cross cutting had been carried out
to intersect the surface detected guartz veins.

A twenty stamp mill had been o btained from the
Twentieth Century Mine and brought to the Laurentiasn to be
put into operation in May of 1906. It was erected 600 feet
east of the shaft on the west slope of a hill. A trestle
waz constructed from the shaft to the mill and ore was
hauled by a skip that was operated Trom the hoist house.
Water for milling purposes was brought from the lake, a
quarter mile distant. Also installed was a high pressure
half of a 12 drill Ingerscll-Seargant duplex air compressor
and a double drum hoist, one drum being a 50 horse power
Scoteh return tubular boiler covered with asbestos. This
used a feed water heater to supply s team for the plant.

Mr. Blum ordered that a road to the mine be constructed and
this was cut from Dinorwie to the Laurentian site, an all
land route except for the Wabigoon River crossing.

The mine was worked contimuously through till 1907, but
only extensive cross cutting, drifting and stoping and no
shaft sinking was done. The stamp mill ran for part of
the year but was Torced down over the winter of 1207 for
lack of water., After that time a 5 inch pipeline was
lajd four feet under the ground surface, below the frost-

line, to the lake and a pumping plant installed there.
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All through 1907 the mine was in active operation
and the stamp mill worked for the better part of the
¥year. ©Shaft work sank to 300 feet and here a station was
cut, while drifting was continued mnorth and south.

For 1908 the mine reached a total depth of LOO feet
with development on several levels and production from
the shaft kept the mill running most of the time. Mr.
Nickerson supervised the work of t he thirty men employ-
ed at the Laurentian in 1908.

Work aft the mine continued steadily until 1910 when
the ownership changed hands and the purchasers neglected
to work the property. Inspector Corkill, of the Depart-
ment of Mines had this to say about the closing of the
Laurentian, "The closing down of +¢ his property, which
was considered the mainstay of the district, is unfort-
unate, as it retards the 1investment of capital in other
properties near, and discourages other companies attempt-
ing to develop paying mines."

For the next three years there was no mining work
done and the only people remaining on the site were there
to keep the shaft unwatered and take care of the buildings.
In 1913, Great Golconda Mines Limited, appointed Dryden
Smith mine manager to supervise =a few men in cleaning out
accumilated ore from the shaft.

The next attempt at mining the Laurentian was under-
taken by Kenbrooke Gold Reserve of Sherbrooke, Quebec in
1922. The mine was worked from March to May, some repairs
being made on the buildings and tramway leading to the mill.
Ho actual mining work was carried out and in May work
stopped due to stock sales not being sufficient.

Production From the Laurentian

1906 $26,315.00
1907 50,470.75
1908 32,248.75
1909 32,104.612

Total:5141,139.11

It is reported, and is apparently true, that much of
the gold (from the L aurentian) was stolen.
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LEAGUE MINE#
*al=so Gold Coin

The League mine was opened up as the Gold Coin
property in the Dryden area. It was the south half of
the north half of lot six concession one Van Horne
township, a half mile from t he boat landing and on
the government road that was ¢ onstructed around 1904
to the newly developing mining properties. The League
was due north ofi'the Redeemer mine and owners were
the Gold Coin Mining company.

Mining commenced April of 1904 and t he shaft was
sunk to 55 feet to measure T feet by 10 feet, all work
being done by hand. By the fall of 190k operations were
suspended as the vein of quartz was found to contain
only a small amount of iron and copper pyrites.

The EShareholders Protective Leage Limited of Detroit
took over the Gold Coin Mine in 1910 and engaged in mining
work in the summer of that year. The original shaft was
down to a depth of 80 feet and the = econd shaft, Wo. 2,
was sunk to 35 feet. Power plant at that time consisted
of a 45 horse power boiler and hoist.

Three shafts were sunk while t he mine was operated
by the Shareholders League, but after the summer of 191k
the mine was closed down and the buildings were left in
charge of A. Pitt and G. Larson, of Dryden.
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LITTLE MASTER MINE

The Little Master mine had been running for a year
previous when it was first mentioned in the annual Mine
Report of the Ontario Department of Mine=s. The company
built a two mile road from the mine, north west, to con-
nect with the govermment road that ran between the Man-—
tou and Wabigoon Lakes.

In 1904, 8. V. Halstead was the manager and S.H.
Williamson, the foreman in charge of fourteen men,

Work in 1904 was being done on No. 3 shaft, which
was then 50 feet wvertical and measured T feset by 12 feet,
having a solid collar to 24 feet, beyond which no timbers
or ladders reached. The men entered and left t he
shaft by bucket and, this being unsafe, they were instruc-
ted by the inspector to comply with the Mines Act and
construct timbers down toe within a safe distance of the
bottom and to not use the 1 adders after that time.

MNo. 1 shaft, 200 feet north west of No. 3 shafi and
106 feet higher uphill, was sunk to S50 feet, at T feet
by 12 feet, with a first lewel at the bottom and a cross
cut 26 feet west. Operations were suspended until a
connection could be make underground by cross cutting
and upraising to reach No. 3 shaft.

Wo. 2 shaft was 350 feet north east of No. 3 and a
Ffew feet higher up hill. The depth there was 100 feet
vertical and €& feet by 9 feet, with a first level at 80
feet and cross cuts east and west at that point. Hoist-
ing was done in Neo. 3 by bucket, a rope passed over a
sheave on the open head frame, descending the hill over a
trestle about LOD feet long to the hoist house.

The machinery in the hoist house included a Jenckes
hoist, 28 horse power locomotive type boiler.

The camp was located on the lakeshore LO0O feet from
the workings and included a.'boarding house, bunk house

office and stables.
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The wvein in No. 1 shaft average one foot wide and was
rich in free gold but, because of its smallness it was
not considered to be of commercial value. Test pits were
opened up all over the property.

For the next year, 190%, the property was developed
continually and remained under the same management with
a work force of twenty-five men. The main shaft, Ho. 3,
was sunk to reach 175 feet and was t imbered most of the
way. The first level at 152 feet had cross cuts east and
west and a south drift for 105 feet. Hoisting was yet
done by a bucket operated by a new power house 60 feet
south east of the shaft. Installed there also was a new
2 drill Rand air compressor, along with the same hoist
and another 65 horse power locomotive type boiler. The
latter was found to be in very unsafe condition and the
inspector instructed the men to abandoned it. A new
boarding house was built in 190% and the lumberwas cut on
the premises in the company cwned sawmill.

In 1906 the Summit Lake Gold Mining Company owned
the Little Master and it remained closed for a year and
a half. During the winter of that year fuel wood, some
800 cords, was piled up in anticipation of active work.

It was reported that work resumed in the spring of
1906 under the supervision of Dryden Smith and that the
power house burned down in the fall of 1905%, that being
the reason for suspending active work.

The boiler house at the Little Master was never re-
built and mining remained suspended, the remaining
buildings being left in charge of Mr. John R. MacDonald,
as was reported in 1910.



LOST MINE

This mine was loecated on the north eighty acres of the
south half of lot six concession one of Van Horne Township.
C. Larson originally sank two shafts three hundred feet a-
rart, to depths of twenty L wo and rifty four feet, reapect-
ively.

It was located on a guartz vein varyving in width from
two and one half feet to six feet. The Lost mine was owned
in 1923 by the Wabigoon Contact Bay Gold Mine Company and in
193L it was taken over by HNorthern Mines Incorporated.

On May 24th, 1935, the Dryden Observer reported that
the Northern Mines Company was to take over all the inact-
ive mines of the Wabigoon Contact Bay Mining Company and
on May 28th it was reported that the take over had been

completed. This company also took over inactive Porcupine
Mines.

The shafts at the Lost mine were de-watered and re-
novated in preparation for renewed work, but that was the
last report from the Lost mine.
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LOWER NEEPAWA MINE

This mine was 1 ocated on the north west shore of
Lower Manitou Lake, The shaft was sunk to sixty-five feet
and buildings on the site included sleeping and cocking
camps.

The mine opened in March of 1897 and closed the
following September with plans to reopen. However, the
mine was never reopened and remains listed with many

others as a forgotten prospect.
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MANHATTAN MINE

The Manhattan Gold Location consisted of two mining
locations, DJ2 and DJ3, on a point on the south shore of
EBagle Lake, four miles south west of the Indian village.

The claim was owned by theManhattan Gold Mining
Company of Manitou, Ontario with its head office at 16
Exchange Place, New York.

During the fall of 1900 1 ittle surface work was
done, sinking only two test pits, No. 1 pit to the
east reached down 8 feet and No. 2 pit, a guarter mile
to the west of No. 1, reached a depth of 4 feet.

No buildings were built at the site and testing

was as far as the development work got.

68



MAW GOLD MINE

In 1898 John Maw and 8. 0. Greening, of the B. Green-
ing Wire Company, acquired the mining rights to five L0 acre
locations: HWL55, W76, W77, 478 and 479, from C. W. Hale
and Captain H. Lowry of the New Klondike. The property
was east of and adjoining the Sakoose property.

On location HWLWT9, a U4 foot by T foot shaft was sunk
to a depth of 40 feet on a vein of dark blue quartz that
carried copper and iron pyrites and pyrrhotite. The shaft
was said to be neat and a substantial collar reached to
10 feet. It had an 18 inch ladderway that was securely
boarded off from the hoisting compartment to a suitable
depth. Work was supervised at the Maw Gold mine by
C. W. Hale.

On location HWLTT, the outcrops seemed to suggest a
fair sized vein and cosiderable test pitting was done there
with good results.

In 1901 a second shaft was sunk to a depth of 3B feet
and measured T feet by 9 feet and plans were to continue
sinking it to 60 feet at an 80° incline instead of follow-
ing the wein. The only buildings on the properiy were
the blacksmith shop and the sleeping camp, while the men
boarded at the Sakoose mine.
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MERIDTAN MINE

The Meridian Bay mining location was on the west side
of Eagle Lake situated over a vein, 3 feet to 12 feet
in width. In 1910, Mr. J.E. Stanton was mine manager and
after the vein was stripped to about 200 feet by 25 feet
long at the opening, he claimed the presence of nickel,
copper and gold wvalues.

The find appeared to be good and the mining inspec-
tor said that this was a mine to be watched. A comfortable
camp provided accomodations for the men but no work was

done at the Meridian after 1910.
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MINNEHAHA MINE

In 1908 the Minnehaha mine was owned by the Minnehaha
Mining and Smelting Company and was situated on the north
side of Lake Minnehaha opposite Beaudro's Landing. All
work ceased in May of 1908 after being carried on for about
five months.

The main shaft, formerly at 100 feet with a 25 foot
cross cut at the bottom, had been the only shaft worked
and some prospecting and a test pit had been dug dowm to
25 feet. Mr. C. Good was in charge of these operations.

In 1909 some mining work was done and a new camp
built while surface prospecting was carried on during the
summer. On the whole, very little mining was accomplished.
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MOOSE LAKE LOCATION

The Moose Lake Location was situated on mining
location HW 6, 38 and 63 containing 140 acres ten miles
west of Dinorwie, surrounded by Little Wabigoon, Moose
and Rice Lakes. The owners and o perators were the
Moose Lake Mining and Milling Company Limited, head
offic at 71 St. Peter St. Montreal. The president was
David Robertson, vice president L. N. Depuis and sec—
retary treasurer J. B. H, Chabot.

Frevious to their buying the property, the origin-
2l owners sank two shafts on locationHW 38, one to the
west, 20 feet deep and cne to the east 40 feet deep.
Both of these shafts were water filled at the time of
the 1901 inspection. Work done on HW 6 comsisted of
a surface cross cut 7 feet deep and 18 feet wide. The
Moose Lake Company sank a shaft 75 feet north of that
crosscut and between it and t he old shafts. For 1901
the shaft measured 6 feet by 9 feet by 102 feet deep,
Manager Dryden Smith supervised the work on a new shaft
on the Jjunction of three arms of the wvein.

Mining was temporarily suspended to allow for the
building of a new camp; Shaft house, e ngine house, ete.
The engine house held a 25 horse power vertical boiler
and a 5 inch by 5 inch double cylinder hoist with 270
feet of 1/2 inch steel rope for hoisting by bucket in
the shaft. A pump was planned to be installed at the
lake shore, 300 feet distant, to be worked by steam to
supply the boiler.

The shaft had a 24 foot collar set in it and a
suitable ladderway and hoisting compartment. Upon
completion of the construction plans, mining was sup-
posed to resume and a Tirst level developed from the
depth of the shaft snd driven along the course of the
welin., However the mine shut dowm in February of 1901
due to lack of money but it was hoped operations would
be resumed shortly. The mine did not re-open.
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NORTHERN QUEEN MINE

The Northern Queen mine was situated one and a
quarter miles north east of Wabigoon, and was purchased
in 1897 by the Rand Gold Mining Company of Wabigoon.
Horace Crawford of Winnipeg was president and William
Cowan of Brandon was vice-president.

At the time of inspection in 1897 the shaft was
water filled and there was one other pit on the
property. The mine was reported to be in operation
again in 1899 with the shaft reaching a depth of fifty

feet but it closed down for good in the summer of 1899,
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ORION MINE
The Orion Mine was 1inspected on October 8th, 1899

and was reported to be owned by the Orion Gold Mining
Company Limited of Rat Portage. The Company earned its
capital by selling one dollar shares to accumalate
$999,999.ﬂﬂ; The head office was in Rat Portage, Ontario
and the branch office was at 318-319 Germania Life
Building, St. Paul, Minnesota. GCGeorge H., Fullerton of
Rat Portage was president and the secretary was H, C.
Peterson of St. Paul. The company was to be reorganized
later.

The shaft reached a depth of 50 feet measuring & feet
by 10 feet and mining was t o continue under contract by
Alex Gordon. Three miners were employed and the only

building on the camp site was the boarding camp.
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OXFORD MINE

The Oxford mine was comprised of locations SV128,
129, 131, and 166 about a mile west of CGold Rock on
Upper Lake Manitou. The property was owned by Thomas
Armstrong, William Pinkerton and Wentworth Sharp. Oper-
ators were the Oxford Mining Company of Toronto, Limited
who received interest for the expenditure of a certain
sum on the development work.
The miners here totaled nine and the shaft on SV
129 was 6 feet by 8 feet and reached a depth of T7 feet
with a.cross cut at the bottom north 13 feet and south
11 feet. The buildings included boarding camps, a

blacksmith shop and stables.
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PAYMASTER MINE

Tn 1904, the Paymaster mine was a newly opened
prospect on mining location HW20, comprising 83 acres
of property adjoining the Big Master mine to the south
east. It was owned by the Northern Development Company:

J. E. Burns, president, E. D. Soudan, s ecretary.

Operations began in the fall of 1903 under super-
intendant R. J. Elliot. The shaft was wvertical and, that
first year, reached a depth of 100 feet with a drift north
west of 20 feet from the bottom. Hoisting was done by buc-
ket and a small hoist and 2% horse power boiler in the
adjoining hoist house. A couple of neat camp buildings
stood on the site and two guartz wveins ran about 30 feet
apart across the property. These veins were exposed at
the surface and appeared to be 18 inches to 2 feet wide.

By the fall of 1904 work had ceased temporarily
but resumed shortly afterwards.

In February of 1906, a new &5 horse power boiler,

a duplex cylinder hoist and =& half of a 12 drill air com-
presgor were installed. During the summer of 1905 the mine
worked continuously and the T foot by 9 foot shaft reached
200 feet, an increase of 100 feet s ince the last inspection.
Attention at that time, .was drawn to the fire danger due to
the nearness of the boiler and compressor house to the shaft
house.

For the next year, 1907, the mine remained in asctive
operation, the first level reaching out from 200 feet and a
cross cut being driven 20 feet to cut the main wvein. Cont-
inued sinking was planned down to 241 feet.

In 1908 the shaft was sunk to 275 feet and drifting
on the first level continued to the north and south. Twelve
men carried on this work under superintendant George Thow.
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PIONEER ISLAND MINE

On a small island, a third of a mile from the Grace
mine and one half a mile north west of t he Golden Bagle mine,
was the mining claim of Pioneer Island, location McAZ2hS.

The mine was owned by the Northern Lights Mining Com-
pany in 190k and plans were made shortly afterwards to trans-
fer the eclaim to a subsidary company, the Pioneer Island
Mining Company of Buffalo, New York. During that year, Mr.
H. Higbee was supervisor for a total force of five men. Pre-
vious work was done at this locstion and there existed plans
that operations would be resumed in the summer of 1904 and
a small camp built.

The ore pit, then present was sgquared out to 20 feet
for timbering and continued sinking. The wvein on which it
was sunk was traceable from the shore inland about 400 feet.
The ¢ ompany considered acquiring new heoldings on a water lot
between the islan and mainland and on an adjoining location.
The last mentioned of the Ploneer Island property was that it
was worked on in the first part of 1905 and the shaft had

been sunk to BO feet.
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QUACKENBUSH LOCATION

In 1898 it was r eported that mining location
HP3T5 was owned by V. Quackenbush and work had begun on
the property to sink two shafts. They, respectively,
reached depths of 50 feet and 66 feet. The latter shaft
had 18 feet of eross cutting at the bottom where the vein
was very wide.

The property went out of operation for a short
time in 1898 and the manager, Mr. Glass, said that sink-
ing had commenced on a gquartz stringer that was found to
be crossing the property from the adjoining location.

It was said that this other wvein locked to be wvery
promising. The Quackenbush Location., however., never

reached any major size.
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AUEEN ALEXANDRA MINE

In 1904 an new property called the Queen Alexandra,
was under development by the contractor T. James., The mine
was not inspected as mining operations had just been suspend-
ed on location HW2TO, adjoining the King Edward mine, near
Carlton and Trout Lakes,

The shaft at Queen Alexandra had reached 85 feet and
measured 6 feet by 10 feet, following a quartz vein.

Machinery servicing this prospect ineluded a boiler
and hoist and a two unit Tremaine steam stamp mill. The mill
treated 18 tons of ore that the mine produced, averaging
$16.80 per ton in gold.

The mine continued working between February and
September of 190k and a small camp with several buildings
was built. The men here were serviced by a small steam
boat which ran from Lake Manitou. P. Bolton was the super-
visor of the camp and the Canadisn representative of the
English syndicate owmers.
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REDEEMER MINE

The Redeemer mine was originally opened up in
190Y ms the Hermann and Larson property.comprising the
south west LO acres of lot six concession one of Van Horne
Townehip, five milez south of Dryden. The holders of the
lease were A. S. Hermann, 860 Monadnock Block, Chicago and
%. Larson of Dryden. In 1901 these owners let & working
option to the Redeemer Gold Mining and Milling Company of
Windsor and proceeded with operations under Mr. Larson's
mansgement .

Mining was suspended in April of 1902 due to lack
of pumps to handle the water and lack o f an alr compres-
sor to work the machine drills, as the shaft was then too
deep for continued steam use.

The shaft then measured 66 feet decp, 6 feet by 9
feet and had a 6 foot collar. There was no ladder or tim-—
pering. Besides the shaft, there were geveral test pits
and considerable stripping on the property.

Buildings on the site incliuded a solid 20 foot high
open head frame, power house, a boarding house and a bunk
house . Hoisting in the shaft was done by bucket and half inch
wide steel rope using a small double =ylinder hoist engine
Four men were employed to 1install a three drill Rand air
compraesgsor and receiver in the power house to accomodate
further production.

Development of the Hermann mnd Larson property slow-
ed down for a few years, being cloged down for part of 1905

and at that time the shaft had reached outwards on a new level
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at 100 feet., The year previous, the Hedeemer produced 200
tonzg of ore and milled it on the premises. The power plant
congisted of a three drill air compressor, two bodilers, a

35 aﬁd ko horse power, a small hoist and s ten stamp mill
complaete and with eyanide plant.

For 1906 the work was conducted under the supervisilon
of Mr. Ames and a second level coss cub was driven LOQ TFeet
to cubt the vein found to be cuberopping west of the shaft's
yein. Fifty Teet of drifting had bheen domne on the old wein
which ran on a guaertz ore body with slate carrying pyrites.

By 1900 the shaft was sunk to 235 feet with two lewvels
at 100 and 200 feet. At the time of inspection by the govermn-
ment afficer the shaft was water filled, the sole source of
drinking water for the camp. A continued drought had dried
up all the springs and streams inthe neighbourhood of the
mine.

The camp had the feollowing appearance in 1909;
the shaft and the mill were 80 feet apart, connected by
a covered bridge from the top of the shaft house to the top
of the miil. ‘lThere wers two boiler houses, one for the shaft
and one for the milli., In the shaft house there was one boiler,
the compressor and the hoist engine.

In the shaft, a bucket hoisted the ore intos cars st
the +top of the shaft and then thease wers pushed over the
bridge to the mill and dumped onto the horiszontal grizzly, where
the fine material was separated from the ore and sent direct-—
ly to the astamps. The coarase material went through the Blake

crusher before going to the atemps. The stamps were ten in all
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manufactured by the Jenckes Macine Company of Sherbrooke,
Guebec. Experiments were being made in cyaniding using old bar-
rels as the cyanide tanks but no report was given on the
effectiveness., When the inspector was leaving the mine site
Mr. F. B. Roberts, the mine manager, was jJust arriving to begin
pumping out the shaft and repairing the machinery needed on

the first level and he said it would be at least one week
before the second lewel would be open.

The mine did not open again on a major scale and at
further inspections in 1916 and 1919 was found to be water
filled and the men working at the Rognon and Bonanza properties.
The highest wvalue the Redeemer produced was in 1901 giving

&2 ko000 for 100 tons of ore.
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ROGNON MINE

The Rognon mine was located at t he morth end of
Contact Bay. The ore from this mine, like that from the
Bonanzae mine, was sent to the HRedeemer mine for milling.

In 1916, a shaft was sunk to 23 feet and two test
pits were dug.

In 1917, sixty tons of ore were sent to the Red-
eemer mine to be milled and the s haft was deepened to
70 feet with 60 feet of drifting done.

By 1919, the shaft consisted o f two compartments
and was sunk to 106 feet with levels at the 50 and 100
foot levels. On the 50 foot level, 60 feet of drifting
to t he west waz done and TO feet of drifting to the east &
122 feet to the west wvas carried out on the 100 foot lewel.

The mine changed handstwice while in operation,
the first time in 1919 when it was s old the the Contact
Bay Mines Limited and again inm 1926, when the Bonanza
United Mines tock it o wver.
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SAIREY GAMP MINE

The Sairey Gamp mine was on mining location G149
consisting of 140 acres on the north side of Sairey Gamp
lake, cone half mile west of t he southern arm of Lower Lake
Manitou. The owners were the Rainy Lake Mining and Power
Company, with head office in the Wisconsin Building, West
Superior, Wisconsin. The presiden and general manager was
Mr. 0. A. Watzke and the vice-president and treasurer was
Mr. I.N. Snider,

Mining operations were carried on for the year of
1900, off and on, sinking the shaft to T5 feet with a level
at the TO foot mark. The shaft collar was 10 feet deep
supporting a string of ladders that hung down wertically to
the bottom of the shaft.

The hoist house was 30 feet from the shaft and head
frame and machinegthere included a 25 horse power locomotive
boiler and a 5 inch by 8 inch oseillating cylinder hoist
engine with half inch steel rope. Two boarding camps ser-
viced the twelve men employed at Sairey Gamp, six of whom
were miners.

In May of 1902 a lien was placed on the property and
immediate closing resulted from this action. With no alter-
ation in the = tate of affairs, the Sairey Gamp mine remained

closed.
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SAKOOSE MINE*
*al=sc knwon as Watson or Golden Whale

The Sakoose mine first appeared as the Watson mine
af the New Klodike district south of Dyment, in 1898, It
vas on mining location HW Ll6, 40 acres of land owned by
the Honorable Robert Watson, Mininster of Public Works for
Manitoba, and John M. Munroe of Dinorwie. Fire had cleared
much of the location previous to 1898, and there remained
& and a half acres of clear land, the rest being covered in
small dense evergreens.

Om the property, which was considered the best pro-
spect in the New Klondike for 1898, oceurred large masses
of dark blus guartz which outeropped irregularly where the
rock was exposed. This was a very promising sign of ﬁnder—
lying ore bodies.

Extensive stripping was easgily carried out because
of the maskeg and soil covering t he rock, and the men were
engaged in moving earth, loose rock, moss and trees, The
& foot by B foot shaft, dipping 80" east, was sunk to 90 feet
and the work continued. Thomas Hogan was contracted to sink
ta 1530 feet with 200 feet of drifting at the 100 foot level.

Statistics of the operation went as follows: the
hoisting plant was a 10 horse power hoister, a 9 horse power
upright broiler and 750 pound ore buckets which slid on a
skidway extending to t he bottom of the shafh.

The shaft was covered by a headframe of 22 feet and a ladder-
way was built to within 30 feet of the bottom. Seven miners
were employed and on the camp site there existed a boarding
camp, hoisting engine house and stables.

The mine was in steady operation during the year of
1899 but only one out of three shafts was in operation. HNo.
l. and No. 2 shafts were full of water but both had extensive
work done on them previously. No. 1 was 105 feet deep with
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a crosa cut 1% feet to the south east at the bottem. No.

2 ghatt, bT0 feet north east of Ko, L. was lcocated on a 4if-
ferent wvein and was 10% feet deep with & cross cut 5 fest to
the nerth weest at the B0 foot mark. Neo. 3 shaft was 200 feet
te the south west of Ho. 1 snd was 1 aecated on the same vein
It was B0 feet deep and had 29 feet of drifting of the T5% foot
leyel. Thae ladderway consisted of laders suspended from the
surface with po divisions or platforms and the manager was
ingtractaed by the @mine inspector to remedy this and alse Lo
fence the othsr twoe shafts. All the shafts had suitable head-
Frames and an open aut op the property, seven feet deep on tho
main rein, necessitated feneing or filling in, as supgested by
the inspector.

A halfT a mile from the shart stood the mill oen the
Tank of a river, housing 2 2 stamp Tremaine mill, with apron
plabe Ao gyrating amalgamating plate, a o, 1 Gates erusher,
a Frue vanner with & foot belt, a 35 horse power boiler, a
1 horse powar boiler engine and pump. Other buildinga on
the property inecluded a mill, a temporayy hoist houvse, blacle—
smith shop, store howse, boarding camps, stables, manager
dwellings and two private dwellings, The matager of the mins
was John Munrose and the conbractor Thomas Hogan supervizing
ten miners and a total work forece o f twenty-—one men,

In 1901, the Golden Whale, Tormerly the Watson Mine,
becams known oo the Bakoose Mine and now encompassed locations
HW 416, 68, 75 and NT 22 ss well as AW L16. In the spring of
1300 the group of lacations was sold Yoy Munroe and Wabtson o
the Ottawa Geold Mining =nd Milling Company Limited. The
Airectors of this company were Mr. H. A. Cu=sa, mining engineesr,
the Honorable Georse BE. Foster, President ., John Mather,
vice-president and James Gitson, secretary-treasurer, the
affice belng at T2 Albert Street, Ottawa, Ontarico. Thia com-
pany was sl=o the owner of the Heewatin Reduction Works at
Rat Fortage, In order to ship ore there from €he Ssloose,

a spur line was constructed to the mine from Dyment.
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Operations resumed under the new management in June
of 1900 and the following results of the work were shown on
No. 1 shaft: enlarged to & feet by 1b feet, depth measured
165 feet, and the first level was at 75 feet. On No. 2 shaft,
which at that time lay abandoned, the depth remained at 108
feet, dimensions were T feet by 9 feet and the first level
waes extended out from 35 feet. No. 3, alsc abandoned, had
no further work done on it since the last inspection.

In the main shaft, No. 1, timbers extended down to
the first lewvel and these were divided into three compart-
ments; hoistways, measuring 4 by 4 and a half feet, and a
ladderway , % and a half by U and a half feet. There was no
timbering after the first level and ladders hung in a con-
tinuous string to the bottom. There was a s heet steel chute
lying across the floor of the first level and the ore was
dumped into a bucket hanging over the shaft.,

The mine inspector teook special note in the careless
safety measures taken in the camp. Namely, there was no safe
passage around or over the steel chute and one had to be built,
in No. 2 manway there was no partition between that and the
hoistway, and the ladders hung suspended from one another all
the way to the bottom. Negligence was also evident in the
care of explosives with the powder, fuses and capsz found
lying side by side near the tram road on the working lewels.
The men were instructed to observe the Mines Act for stor-
age of powder underground.

The btuildings on the property, Ain 1900, then included
an 18 by 20 foot shaft house against the west side of the main
shaft, with skidways continmuing up from the mouth to the top
of the building where an automatic device dumped the buckets
of wastegintoc a tram car and, if t hey contained ore, they were
dumped onto a flat grizzly to receive a rough sorting of gangue
and then drop into the bin below. From there this was trammed
1520 feet along a trestle to the railway cars.
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Ho. 2 shaft had a small double oscillating cylinder
hoist that used a one half inch steel rope. Both of the
hoists, as well as all pumps and drills, were operated by
compressed air brought through a 5 inch pipe from a new com-
pressor plant 3,500 feet southwest of the shatft. The old
stamp mill was converted into a compressor house and the old
plant was removed with new machinery being put in its
place. This consisted of two horizontal return tubular boilers,
each of 80 horse power, half of a 1k ariia Ingersall air
compresscer and a receiver. The water supply was obbtained from
a small ereek crossing the 1ocations near that point.

For & monthe of 1900 ore from the Sakoose was shipped
ta T he Heewatin Reduction Works but the mine d4id not produce
sufficient guantities to supply.regularly, more than one of
the two stamp batteries. Lumber was brought in from rail
by Hat PFortage and was used for new buildings on the property,
a poarding house, the manager's and several private dwellings,
a blacksmith's shop and machine szhop, store rooms and a stable,

In the last report the total work force numbered
forty-six men, twenty—seven of those heing miners., all under
the supervision of foreman Gordon and manager H. A. Guess,

Little was heard of the Sakoose mine in later years,
but hope lingered on. In 1935 it was taken over by the Nordic
Sturgecon Mines and plans were made %o 4 eepen the shaft to 500
feet, It changed hands again in 1944 and became the property
of Van Houten Byndicate and was re-staked by G.L. Pidgeon
in 1958 and oprioned to the Brewis and White Company Limited
of Toronto. It was never opened on a larger scale than it had
operated on in the early 1900%s.
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SWANSON GOLD LOCATION

The Swanson Gold Location occupied the south half of
lot 15 concession five of Aubrey Township and the adjoining
38 acre water lot, on the north shore of Eagle Lake.

The owners, in 1901, were George Swanson, L.Lawson
and J. McAree, of Rat Portage. In the summer and fall of
1900, a & foot by 10 foot shaft was sunk to a depth of 57
feet. However, at the +t ime of inspection the shaft was
partially floocded and the were no ladders present. The shaft
being considerably deeper than the lake lewvel, 50 feet away,
had filled with water too fast and had to be abandoned until
equipment, other than hand windlass and bucket, could be pro-
cured. At last report the problem was trying to be resolwved

so operations could be resumed the following spring.
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TWENTIETH CENTURY MINE

On two hundred and sixty-nine acres on Upper Manitoun
Lake, nine miles south west of Gold Rock, was located the
Twentieth Century Mine. In 1902 it was found that the anly
development work done by the previous owners consisted of
stripping the veins and sinking at different points along the
velins during the past two or three years. At the begionning
of 1901, operations began under the new owners, the Twen-
tieth Century Mining Company, Limited, president, Anthony
Blum. On the average, 24 men were employed but relatively
little underground work had been done,concentrating mainly
on surface construction.

The shaft was 175 feet and measured T feet by 11 feet,
or 2 and a half by 9 feet inside the cribbing, and was in-
clined 38" south. The first level was made at 80 feet and
on the second level, at 160 feet, drifting was underway.
Howesver muach work had been done, the mine was not ready
for full scale production in 1902. A No. 5 Cameron pump
in the bottom of the shaft and a Ho. 9 pump over the sump
on the first level, kept the mine free of water. Tt was
expected in the fall of 1902 that a stamp mill would be
brought in along with the accessory machinery.

Buildings on the property included and office, an
assay office, boarding and bunk houses, a warehouse, a stable,
a blacksmith shoep and plans were made to construct an ice
house and another bunk house.

In November of 1902, the mine inspector reported that
no mining was being done as the managment wanted to concen-—
trate on building and completing the new mill, skipway and
surface plant before severe winter weather set in.

By 1903 the surface plant was active but there was
only enough ore to keep one or two of +t he stamp batteries run-
ning for two to eleven hours a day. At that time, there were
312 employees, 8 of those were miners. The main shaft reached
a total depth of 340 feet with a new third level at 2L0 feet

3



and & fourth level at 320 feet. The new developments were

not too encouraging and all work ceased in November of 1903
and the entire plant was dismantled and taken up the lake for
the company's other properties, the Laurentian and the Voleanic
Reef, in February of 190L.
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VIKING GOLD LOCATION

The Viking Gold Location was situasted on 25 acres
of an island in the west end of Eagle Lake, mining location
S B4E, The owners and operators were E. Stevenson, L.
Stevenson, F. Blackie and J. D. Curran of Rat Portage.

Here two men were engaged from October of 1900
in stripping and tracing veins and sinking test pits and
a shaft. At a point near the shore where two veins met,

a shaft was sunk to 15 feet but there was no sign of a
quartz wvein or continuous fissure.

In 1902, the contract was let on the property for
the sinking of an 80 foot shaft and in 1903, the operation
changed owners, being sold to the Viking Mining Company of
Taoledo, Ohio. These owners let a new contract out for
the development of t he location but, whether it was picked
up or not, the property was closed in the spring of 1903.
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VOLCANIC REEF MINE

The Volcanic Reef Mine was under the same manasge-—
ment as the Laurentian and Twentieth Century mines, and was
owned by the Volcanic Reef Mining Company of Boston and
Toronto. The president was Mr. Anthony Blum, secretary
Mr. John Molath and the manager, Mr. Dryden Smith. Fifteen
men worked of the location HP 377, 839, 40O and 41, near
Mud Lake on the eastern end of Upper Lake Manitou.

A one and a half mile wagon road was constructed ar-
cund 1903 from the Laurentian to the Volecanic Reef mine as
a continuation of the road from Gold Rock.

On the property itself, a guartz wvein, one foot wide,
outeropped on top of a hill about 168 feet above Mud Lake
and 600 feet north of that a shaft was sunk to 130 feet with
a level at 100 feset. The shaft was completely timbered and
the management had plans to install & cage. Until that time,
hoisting was done with a bucket and small hoist operated by
compressed air brought in by a three inch pipe from the power
house on the lake, 1,400 feet away.

Machinery at the plant on the lake, included a 50
horse power tubular boliler and a three drill REand air com-
pressor. A new shaft house had just been built previcous Lo
the inspection of 1903 and other buildings on the property

q%

were two log houses and a stable.






VICTORY MINE*
*al=so Upper Neepawa

The Victory mine was originally known as the Upper
Neepawa mine and was situated on mining location MehA 28,

a half a mile north west of Gold Rock. In 1897, under the
owvnership of the Neepawa Company, development work was done
and two shafts were sunk to 46 feet and 25 feet. It was
found, at that time, that the ore was rather low grade on
the a verage.

Mining was suspended at the Viectory until 1906,
when it was worked for a short time. In 1908 the property
was taken over by the Manitou Mines Limited, managing dir-—
ector, H.D.Alston and superintendant J. Beck. The shaft
reached down to 100 feet and considerable surface pros-
pecting was done on parts of the location. A new plant
had bheen installed with a 50 horse power return tubular
boiler, a hoist and a straight line air compressor.

The buildings present were a blacksmith shop, a
boiler house and the wusual camp buildings. The mine
was shut down for good after 1909 and no profit was

liﬂtEdt
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WABIGOON SOAPSTONE COMPANY

In 1922, the Wabigoon Soapstone Company Limited, with
head office in the King Edward Building, Toronto, had been
incorporated to work a soapstone deposit on the north shore
of Wabigoon Lake. Known az the Pidgeon Property, the land
consisted of mining location HW 133, in the Zealand Township,
District of Kenora. WNinety acres in s ize, the property was
bought by the company from E. Pidgeon of Wabigoon. Their
capital w&ssicﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂ.cﬂ divided into 50,000 shares of $10.00
par wvalue. Company directors included president, H. H. Suther-
land, Toronto, vice president, E. Pidgeon, Wabigoon, secretary
treasurer, R. E, Evans, Toronto and Robert PFennell and F. C.
Sutherland, both of Toronto.

In the Mines Branch Report No. 583, the deposit was
deseribed by Hugh 3. Spencer as outlined below:

Notes on the occurence of an interesting and
extensive soapstone deposit were made during
a visit to the 1locality in October of 1921.
The rock found here is termed s ocapstone for
lack of a better name, though it possesses few
of the outward characteristics of the stone.

I resembles closer the Alberene stone that

is mined in Virginia and used extensively for
purposes normally served by socapstone. The
mineral composition, under analysis, shows
that they correspond closely.

In Wabigoon stone there is a high comp-
ostion of talc with some chlorite and dolomite
giving it a dark greenish-grey colour. It is
fine to medium grained and soft encugh to be
seratched with a fingernail. There are two
well-defined bands, separated by roughly 100
feet, which tend to run northwest. Where the
bands are situated, the CPFR is a mere S00 yards
distant and the ground in between, level and
ideal for laying a spur track.

After testing the stone it was found that
the most suitable use would be for bricks for
the smelting furnaces of sulphate-pulp mills.
Tho=se furnaces called for a refractory materisl
structurally strong enough to resist cracking
under high heat temperatures.
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Being, at that time, more than a dozen sulphate-
pulp mills in ¢Canada, the total number of socapstone
bricks used was considerable, as Mr. Spencer noted.
Seeing as all these bricks were imported from the Unit-
ed States, specifically VWirginia, a Canadian source
would lessen the ecost of such bricks to the pulp mills,
kEeeping in mind the Wabigoon stone for this purpose,
if it held up under actual working conditions. Further
uses of the stone might alsce have been for bake oven
bricks, which proved to be supericr to ordinary fire
bricks on account of their higher heat retention, but
their use as such was limited owing to the difficulty
in ocbtaining and high cost of scapstone.

Economically speaking, Mr. Spencer found the
Wabigoon deposit to be most promising. The amount
available was considerable, within a short distance
of the railroad and in an excellent location for a
quarry site. As it turned ocut, in 1922 work was done
on this property in the way of stripping and sampling,
clearing timber and building road access.
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WACHMAN PROPERTY

The Wachman Mining and Milling Company Limited was
formed in 1919 with a capital of £500,000.00, and had plans
to work the gold claims west of the Rognon mine, six miles
due south of Dryden.

Two men were engaged insinking t he 16 foot shaft
by hand and a total of eight men occupied the camp, consist-
ing of sleeping guarters, a cook house and stables. The
president , Mr. Robert Wachman of Chicago, moved his resi-
dence to the wvillage of Dryden for the duration of the work.

A1l the men were paid off in December of 1920 and
work ceased on the two compartment shaft that had reached

the 100 foot mark.
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WESTERFIELD MINE=*
also Independance or Reliance

The Westerfield mine was located between Upper and
Lower Manitou Lakes, near the narrows where the steamboat
landing connected with the small lake, Lake Charlton. The
mine was approximately one mile from there by foot trail
and a half a mile further by ¢ anoe across Lake Carlton.

The mine took up locations HP 355, 386, 387 and G 31, each
forty acres in size. Originally it was operated by the
Manitou Lake Gold Mining Company Limited, whose head office
was in S5t. Paul, Minnesocta. Work began in April of 1898
employing sewven miners.

They worked on an irregular gquartz wvein that was
two Lo two and a half feet wide, bPranching in one or two
places but being traceable from the surface cutcroppings.
Three shafts were sunk; No. 1 reached 43 feet, No. 2 went
down to 22 and a half feet and No. 3 went to L0 feet with
20 feet of drifts in each direction at the bottom.

During the inspection of 1898, Nos. 1 and 2 were
not being worked and were partially full of water. It
was proposed that No. 3 shaft bhe given a tramway to Charlton
Lake a guarter of a mile away and that a mill be built there.
At that time guartz samples were taken from the shafts and
assayed weekly on the premises.

In 1899, the Westerfield became known as the Indep-
endance mine and operations were suspended owing to a law-
suit pending for some time regarding t he property title.

No work was done that yvear in shafts 1 or 2, and the main
shaft, No. 3, was partially water filled. Mr. Gordon was

in charg of the operations previous to the sutdown and he
said that all the machinery for a ten s tamp mill was at the
mine landing on the shore of Lower Lake Manitou and ready
for transportation over the new wagon road.

As reported in 1902, five men had been engaged since
July of 1901, in building uwp the camp site in anticipation
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of further mining. One hundred thousand feet of lumber had
been cut at the Glass Reef Mine sawmill on the other side
of the lake for building a stamp mill that was brought in
in 1900. The man in charge, Mr. A. E. Botterell said that
the future plans for the mine were not wvery settled.

In 1903 the mine became the property of the Reliance
Gold Mining and Milling Company Limited o f Detroit, Michigan.
Mr. T. Armstrong was the superintendant of eight men, who
were working on sinking No. 2 shaft and No. 1 shaft to 97
feet. The shaft of the latter was timbered and had a
good ladderway. Hoiting was by means of a bucket, block and
tackle and horse, with a good brake on the rope. Not mach
was heard of the mine after the Reliance company took it

over the property.
10%



Mining Accidents

The personal risk involved to miners in the early
days of mining cannot be stressed enough. In those years,
while not necessarily the fault of the workers, the cond-
itions they worked under, the equipment they used and the
unavailability of medical attention placed the men in a
certain element of danger. Although there were not that
many instances of major accidents, possibly due to the
fact that active mining was only carried on for a few
years collectively, the following reports are taken from
investigations into thése mishaps by the Ontario Depart-—
ment of Mines.
Sakoose Mine: fAugust 23, 1901

Andy Yoemans, while climbing up the ladderway fr;m
the sub-level to the first level, was struck with the des-
cending bucket and Knocked down to the sub-level, being
partially caught by another miner. He was taken to the
hospital at Rat Portage but the injuries d4id not prowve to

be severe and he was released in two weeks time.

Gold Moose Mine: December 18 1901

After a blast being set off, miner Peter Peterson,
went down to "muck™ out the loose ore. In believing all
the charges had exploded Feterson went to work with a
shovel. In so doing his tool struck a small amount of
powder-dynamite that had been left in the explosion. The
following blow up caused damaged to his eyesight. A
moenth or six weeks later, Peterson was reported almost well |

and ready to resume work. ]_05



Big Master Mine: August 20th, 1903

At 10 am that day, Albert Johnson, while working
underground was ffatally injured. He was onsof the ma-
chine crew engaged in stoping between the lst and 2nd
lewvels. His working partner climbed to a stope platform
a short height above and in doing so, dislodged a wooden
bucket or box used for lowering steel. This struck John-
son on the head resulting in the fracturing of his shkull.
Five hours later he died. The coroner at Wabigoon did
not consider an ingquest necessary., the cause of death being
accidental. The careless placement of the box on the plat-
form was to blame this time, being placed so a slight move-
ment would knoek it off.

Big Master: March 1Tth, 1902

Four men were injured on one of the eight hour
shifts who were working on the main shaft beginning at
3 pm. Thelir previous workers had completed drilling about
16 holes and it remained that the following shift load
blast and "muck out”. The centre 8 of +the holes were
blasted, 8 charges counted and mucked out. The remaining
holes were then loaded and fired but only six blasts
counted. When removing the muck the two missed holes were
located with burnt fuses still in place. John Archibald
and John 3t. Amand began picking the loose rock at the
bottom of the shaft. while co=workers Malcom Spear and

George Robinson stood back out of the way. While using his
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pick Archibald struck and exploded loose dynamite which
resulted in his leg being broken, two fingers being blown
off, eyes cut and eyesight destroyed. St. Amand suffered
a broken jaw, face and eye injuries. Spear had his face
and one eye cut and bruised; Robinmscn, hand and face
bruised and cut, not seriously. T hose on the surface who
heard the blast rushed below and brought up the injured
men, ., giving them the best possible care under the circum-
stances. The nearest doctor, Dr. White of Wabigoon,

came in 13 hours and Dr. Blair of Dryden came 9 hours after
hime. ©On March 19th the men were taken to Wabigoon and
from there to hospital in Winnipeg. It was not certain
how the loose dynamite came to be in the bottom of the
shaft but the remaining stock of t he explosive proved to
be in poor condition and it was ordered destroyed.

Laurentian Mine: April 26th, 1910

Jacob Nymen, a machine operator, was killed while
loading a hole with gelignite. Isaac Nyman, who was about
twelve feet from the deceased, took the paper off the gel-
ignite and handed Jacob two sticks, one of which he put in
the hole. It stuck about four and a half feet from the col-
lar of the hole and the deceased was trying to push it when
the explosion occcured. The hole was about s even feet deep.
The drillers of the hole said they had had difficulty with
the drill at this depth which accounted for why there was
trouble with it sticking and why Jacob Hyman, by using too
much pressure in trying to get it to the bottom of the hole,
set off the explosion. The corconer's Jjury ruled death by

accident.
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The Early Manitou Country

Degeription and Hazards

In 1894, in his report of the Rainy Lake region,
that is including the area of the Manitou Lakes, Dr. A.
P. Coleman noted the favourable conditions available for
further exploration. He and his party discovered that
thousands of miles of shoreline had well exposed rock,
guite convenient for the geclogist and prospector. In
frequent cases rocky slopes and walls rose right out
of the water and could be examined without having to
get out of thecanoe. However, in some areas, the forest
came right down to the shore and rock could not be seen.
Away from the lakes and further inland,soil and
forest wvegetation covered the surface of the ground. Rock
erops were to be seen only here and there as weathered
ridges or, as in many instances, fires had swept away
the Norway and white pines, leaving them in a tangle
of trunks on the forest floor. The geclogist also
observed that when fires swept over and area for the sec-
ond time, as had occurred at some points on the Lake Man-
itou shoreline, the soil would be cleaned off, fallen
trees and all, leaving only bare rock slopes and ridges.
He stated the unlikeliness of plant re-generation for
years to comes, Coleman proposed that the fires were im-

mediately helpful to the prospector but would prove, in the
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long run, to be injurious to the mining industry as the
area would be robbed of timber for fuel, building and
mining purposes.

The land itself was highly attractive to the geo-—
logists of those years, being an ideal region for canoe
navigation and the lakes being so numercus, providirng
easy routes in any direction with few long portages in
between. The lakewaters were abundant in pickerel,
whitefish and jackfish and the Manitou and Clear Water
lakes, having exceptionally clear water, were the home
of trout also.

Coleman was highly concerned with the extensive
loss due to forest fires in the area, remarking that with-
out forest fire preventation tactics in the near future,
the great pine stands of the region would be lost. He re-
lated an account of his personal experience with forest
fires in report of 1894 for t he Ontarioc Department of
Mines. During the month of August on a field trip to the
Manitou area, Coleman and his party came in direct range
of a raging fire while travelling in © he chain of lakes
betwee the Atikokan River and Lac des Milles Lacs. The
smoke became so dense that even on the narrow lakes they
were forced to steer the cance by compass or otherwise
coast slowly along the shoreline. He stated that on Baril
Lake, August 29th, the air became so thick with smoke

and falling ashes and cinders that the sky was dark by
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noon and they had to land and wait on the charred shore
£i1l a shower cleared the air. They were careful to camp
at night in spots where the fire had previously passed,
leaving nothing more to burn. The loss of forest life
was immeasureable; birds were killed in the wvery air in
which they flew and in one small lake all the fish float-
ed dead on the surface. While not all the larger trees
were completely burned, they were,;, for the most part killed
and in & relatively short time the men noticed larvae
tunnelling into the wood and destroying it. They claimed
to hear the incessant sound of t he raspy jaws up to a
quarter of a mile away at times scon to leave little heaps
of sawdust at thebase of the trees.

Mr. J. Watson Bain conducted mining classes for
twoiweeks at locations in Port Arthur, Wabigoon, Rat
Fortage and Mine Centre, the object of which being, to in-
crease the knowledge of local geology and mineralogy, thus
assisting in miners' work. In Port Arthur on May S5th, 18068
twelve students were in attendance and t he class was con—
gidered a success, that is until the ice on inland waters
broke up and almost everyon went into the field to work.
Seeing as there were not enough remaining,classes were can-
celled and the school moved on to its next stop at Wabigoon.
From May 25th to June Tth there was a good general attendance
totalling thirty—-two in all. Contimaing on to Rat Portage

for the 14th of June until the 29th they enrolled fifteen
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students there and moved along to Mine Centre until August
3rd taking in twenty students. In closing.the classes were
said to be a considerable success and "a lively interest
was shown by all."

Mining Classes such as these were carried over the
mining "ecircuit" for several years beginning with those
taught this particular year. The idea materialized when the
Ontario legislature gave one thousand dollars towards the
summer mining classes to be divided betwee the Toronto
School of Practiecal Science and the School of Mining in
Kingston, both of which sent ocut the professors to teach

the classes,
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The following historical date has been compiled from
the collection of Ontaric Department of Mines Annual Reports
dating back to 159k,

In January of 1824, Dr. A.P. Coleman was
appointed Geologist and Mineralogist to the Bureau
of Wines of the Provinece of Ontario and, as such,
received orders from Director Archibald Blue to
prepare for swmer Tield work in the Rainy Lake
Gold Region., Dr. Coleman and hiz appeinted mssis-
tant, Dr. John Borwash of Vietory University,
Toronto, a former mineralogist to the Province of
flew Brunswick, left Toronto on June 1Tth, 1894 for
Rat Portage (presently Kenora, Ontaric).

In Rat Portage they further supplemented
their supplies and engaged as canceman Mr. William
Margach, Jr. They began work by wvisiting the Sul-
tana Mine and other geologically interesting
points on Lake of the Woods and then took a steam-
er. the Monarch, to Fort Frances, where they comp-
Leted their party by engaging twe hal f-breeds,

John Vincent and Pierre Mainville, as cock and
CANOSman .

For the next month the men travellesd exten-
gively in the Rainy lake area visiting gold minding
locations, studying veins and rock and collecting Early inspecticn
specimens. After re-fitting hisz party, Coleman of Manitou area
turned northwards passing through Lake Despair and
Clear Water Lake into Pipestone Lake, after which
they travelled eastward through Strawberry and
other lakes into the southwestern end of Manitou
Lake, Mining lLocations of Upper Manitou Lake wepre
visited and the party proceeded on to the CPR stat-
icn of Wabigoon. Here the party disbanded. The
twa hired men from Fort Frances weres paid off and
returned home in & bark cance and those remaining
returned by rail to Rat Portage. Dr. Burwash then
going on to Toronto and Dr. Coleman remaining in
the ares to undertake small expeditions on Lake of
the Weods, travelling as far east as the Atikokan
River wim Lac des Milles Lacs and completing his
work at Savanne on September lst.

Coleman concluded that the season had been
Tavourable for geological work, despite the fact
that unususlly high water on Rainy Lake in early
summar had covered many interesting cuterops along
the shore, apd low water near the end of the summer
interfered with cance navigation. He also cited
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the fact that the prevalancy of forest firea in
the area in that year of 186k,

In closing his report, Coleman noted the
necissity for geological maps covering this region
of Ontarioc that he found "s¢ interesting and impor-
tant from the economic- side™. His final paragraph
acknowledged the help he received, reflecting
greatly upon the early ploneers of Northwestern
Ontario.

"The writer of the present report wishes
to express his gratitude to the many friends who
have aided in the work, officials of the Crown
Lands of the Department of the Frovince, members
of the Hudson Bay Company at Rat Portage, Fort
Frances and Savanne, and many miners and pros-
pectors; the latter, generous and hospitable
men, rarely overburdened with this world's goods,
but perennially hopeful for the future, They
ares a class who are of much importance to the
provinece, and yet who geldom reap the full re-
ward of their labors and privations.

In his report of 1894 Coleman pointed out
that of the two Manitou lakes the majority of the
mining locations were on its upper part, numercous
locations being on islands and one of particular
promise, Location 150P, had started blasting at
this early date. BRegardless of its appearance,
assys from this leocation turned out negative.

Another of the earliest locations was
situated on & point at the southeast end of Upper
Manitou. This was location 131P taken up by a
prospector named LaCourse. Blasting to a depth
of approximately 12 to 15 feet turned up assays
of 1B6.00 of gold per ton, which proved to be
to be the best in the Manitou region up te this
point in time.

During the month of August, 1894, Coleman
noted the operation of only one mine on the
Manitou, that of Mr. Rochon, of the firm Lillian
and Rochon of Keewatin. His location, 133F, was
near the northeast end of Upper Manitou, a mile
north of the entrance. Here a small party was
developing a bedded wvein of gquartz. Mr. Coleman
took out a specimen of free gold received from
one-half pound of the ore being crushed in a
mortar then panned for gold content.

Up to the summer of 1894 Coleman related
that the Manitou lakes had revealed only specimens

Manitou's
pioneers

Manitou mining
c. 1894

113



of geld, some of them being wery fine indeed.
There were no mines or stamp mills in operation
and the decpert exvloretion had only zone down

25 feet, There had been ten assays made From
varigus claims, four of which carricd gold
running from a trace to 186.00 per ton. Sold
yielding samples had been taken from the south-
west end of the lake, one from the lower oXpan-
aion and the remainins two from the Upper Manitow
lake. Coleman concluded that the Upper Manitou
wat by far ylelding the richer prosrects, however,
the cuteome of mining this region could be only
speculated upon until furthey develorment could
e carried out.

He also wrote of accesibility to thoe Manitou
by two scasonable means; cance in surmer and dog
train in winter. The twe cance routen uged wero
one from Rainy Lake on the sauth, which reguired
a long day's paddle, and o shorter one from the
Canadian Pacific Sailroad line at Wabigoon. The Manitou country
Iatter route appeared shorter in miles travelled
but usually meant extended pertages, six in all,
some lohg and ohc guite bothersome because of mug-
kep., When Coleman®s party came through from
Wabigoon the low water level lengthened one of
the vortages ouite drastically and the wild
rice had grown zo tall and thick at the narrows
on the upper end of Little Wabigoon, that the
men wasted much time fercing their canoces
through it. AfTter eciting this experience, Cole-
man gtated o proposal of the Ontzrio movernment
to cut a wagoen road from the northeast cond of
Manitou lake to A smaller lake six or saven miles
north to the navigation point on the Yabigoon
chain of lales. Also stated was the possibility

r smull steamers (stern wheelers) beinz able
to make passaps up to the point of the proposced
road. Howover, Coleman reflected the low water
level could make this a 4ifrficult task and
especially taking into consideraticn the riec fMicla

Acvcessibility Eo

at the Little Wabipgoon Naorrows., L N T PN PO Ny T
e pasgage taken
From his report on the mines of Horthwestern from 1897 is
Ontaric in 1898, James A. Bow made three trips inserted on the
over the western ares, visiting all working mines following page
and most of the developing properties. FHo was oe- in report of 189§

companied on his first tour by Mr. J.¥W. Bain, an
instructor of the School of Practieaml Scicnce aof
Toronto whoe wan hoelding summer mining classes
throughout the area. The second tour was made in
the company of Professor Courtnay Delald, Inspectors
of Mines for Eastorn dnbtario who travelled owver
the whole provinee. And the Minal tour began in
Hovember, Duiring which t=ips to mines were mado
conveniently while compiling the anoual report at
Ant Port .
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Coleman and his & ssociate, Professor Will-
mot, in their inspection of the region in 1897,
reached Wabigoon late on July lst and here parted
company for a time. Coleman commented that Wabi-
goon was the newest town in the district and
"expects to win the trade of the Manitou to the
south as well as of various mines nearer by."
on July 2nd Coleman boarded t he steamer, the Wm.
Whyte, heading south and then eastward into Little :
Wabigoon and followed the course south-southwest Early trip to
to the mouth of Grassy River. From here he noted Manitou from
navigation became bothersome. Repeatedly in the wWabigoon
bends of the narrows the boat had to cut its eng-
ine and be pushed through with poles and even in
high water, weeds were continually clogging the
propellor and it had to be reversed to disengage
them. Although troublesomes rocks had been removed
by the boat owners, some very dangerous ones
remained and near the head of the creek, before
entering Lake Minnehaha, Coleman's boat ran
aground. However they did manage to get off again.
The dam at Wabigoon River, Dryden station, was
raised during that season by a2 force of men under
government orders, owing to the dry season, though,
navigation remained difficult.

Coleman, upon disembarking from the boat at
the north end of the government road,found a
"village of eight or ten tents and two or three
shacks, including a store and a hotel?  This
town occupied about five acres of land cleared
from the bush. Seeing as no dock had yet been
built, the steamer tied up at a large rock
which served for a landing spot. At this time
the government road was still under construction
having large members of men employed straighten-
ing the old trail, grading and laying down
corduroy in the swampy places. While Coleman was
present the first wagon passed over the new
road, whereas previously all stores were carried
in on the back. In reaching the south end
of the portage Coleman found another small wvil-
lage of tents and one or two log houses and
people employed in building a small steamer
for travel on Lake Manitou. This tiny cluster
of buildings would soon come to be known as
Goldrock.
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centre.

Twenty miles east from Wabigoon, wvhere the “Neaw Klondike"

Bear Creek crossed the CFR tracks, the flag stat-
ion of Dyment with a half mile of side +track

had been established and the townsite surveyed.

A hotel had been built with first class accommod-
ation by Mr. D. A Larson,vho was influential in
founding the station. Mr. Bow stated that the
yment station was quickly becoming the most
convenient point to enter the mining country to
the gsouth and a nine mile wapgon road led inte the
New Klondike. The road was initially cut by Walker
and Brown and others who had a general interest in
the region, and the government widened and cont-
inued the road for zix miles. It wvas reasoned that
the countrywas fairly level and tree growth relat-
ivelylight , therefore, easy roads could be cut at
no real expense. As an alternative the Hew
Klondike region could be reached from Wabigoon or
Dinorwic by a steamer that ren up the Little
Wabigoon River to within three miles of the mine
area,. Inspector Bow stated that a road had been
cut out so as to establish connection with the
railroad by this route. Mr. Thos. Hogan had done
most of the development work under contract in the
area and was highly productive in road cutting,
spending as much as 500,00 in that work, as he
told Inspector Bow.

From the report of his inspection tour of
1899, Mr. Bow expressed wonder in the fact that
the Manitou ccuntry had not been more successful
progressing in relation to the rest of the district
Accessibility did not account for this because, as
he reasoned, the Manitou was not as accessible as
the Lake of the Woods, but was definitely more
easily reached than other parts of the district,
which seemed to be moving ahead favourably. There
was now regular steamboat service on Wabigoon and
Manitou Lakes; three for Wabigoon and two for
Manitou, as well as a stagel(in truth an ordinary
wagon) on the seven mile portage between the two
lakes and the stage road was usually relisble,
unless the weather became wet. Mr. Bow saw a
possible boost in the industry with the possible
arrival of new stamp mills.

south of
Dyment

Steamer service
- For area
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In the mining report for January of 1901,
Inspector Bow wrote that the mines then working
in the Manitou had practically all been opened
up within the previous wyear, 1200, and most of Mining progress
the older properties had been closed with the e. 1900
exception of the Independance Mine, at which a
small force was found to be "preparing timbers
for the erection of a stamp mill™ +that was taken
in there about two years ago. A new wagon road
about three gquarters of a mile long had been cut
in the winter of 1900 at a point between Wabigoon
and Little Wabigoon lakes. This shortened the
winter route from Wabigoon to the Manitou by
five miles. Mr. Bow made his inspection of the
area "during the early days of January, 1901."

Az for the New Klondike region for the year
of 1901, a seven mile spur line of the CPR had
been constructed from Dyment station down into
the district. It had been intended initially for
the Sakoose Mine but was available for use by
other area mines. The rapid development of the
Sakoose property was a major factor in establish-
ing a name for the region, even though during
January of 1901 only Sakoose and one other
location were being worked.

For the next six years the mining inspectors
concentrated their reports on t he individual
mines being developed in the region, as the area
itself had been previocusly described. Until 19210
little was mentioned of the area's residents
or progress, other than the statement from 1907,
that in the Eagle Lake area, with the exception
of prospecting, no work had been done on any wveins
save at the Grace Mine.

A.L. Parsons, in ending his report of 1911,
for 1910, gave the following acknowledgements Acknowledgments
for favours and the hospitalities extedded to him
during the summer; M. Dryden Smith, manager of
the Detocla mine, who assisted in locating claim
lines and in moving the party's equipment. Mr.
Dixon was also thanked for helping transport the
men from Minnehaha Lake to Dryden.

During the months of June, July and August
of 1916, Mr. Ellis Thomson, as instructed by T.W.
Gibson, Deputy Minister of Mines, carried on a
geclogical field work study in the Dryden area.
Bacause of the recent discovery of gold ore at
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Contact Bay on the soutwest corner of Wabigoon
Lake, special attention was tuwrned teo this region.
He had, during July and August, hired on Charles
W. Merrill, of Wabigoon as cook and canoeman.,
and on a special ftrip to Gull Lake, C. D. Coates
of Dryden as his guide. In eclosing his report,
the author gave sgpecial acknowledgements to Mr.
and Mrs. E. G. Rognon with whom he stayed during
the first month afield. Also thanked were A.
Fitt, G. Larson, A. McPhail and D, Hutchizon of
Dryden and J.Aaron of Wabigoon for help giwven
while in their respective wvicinities.
Tgrnugh his time spent in the Dryden area
in 1916, Mr. Thomson compiled notes on the region
of the past. He described the srea as having a Ei:;gipjizz 2:rca
"smooth and undulating”™ surface, especially to the 1916
north, but being broken here and there by rough
hills s in the wicinity of Trap Lake. The land
of the towvnships of Zealand, Wainwright and the
northern half of Van Horne, was covered with
heavy clay, much as it is today, on which wae
located many prospercus farms. As seen by him
in 1916, much of the northern section had been
cleared and only the eastern part of Zealand
township remained wooded. In contrast, the south-
ern parts of the region were covered with moder-—
ately dense growth of deciduous trees, like birch
and poplar,with the odd evergreen and rock out-
croppings being fairly numerous. The entire area
was overburdened with stratified clay, as Thom-
son saw it, characterized by the shores of Wabi-
goon Lake. He desoribed these clay banks as
coming down to the water level, or within a few
feet of it, and being easily eroded by wave
action. He noted that the contours of the lake
changed considerably, even within the course of
a ¥Year and that numercus small islands disappear-
ed as frequently as new ones are formed, while
the ends of peningulas and points are cut off.
Noted also is the fact that erosion was hastened
when the lewvel of the lake had been changed
at different times through Dryden Timber and
Power Company to aid in logging operations.
The Wabigoon River at that time had two
falls in its course running through the Town of
Dryden. They supplied the power for the oper-
stion of the plant run by £ he Dryden Timber and
Power Company. It was not doubtful that more
power could be developed for the cperation of
mining plants, however, no such use of this
power had been contemplated up to that time.

Excursion to
Dryden area
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The Eagle Lake area was also covered by
Inspector Bow in his report of 1901 outlining
the country and its development. Bow noted that
the area could be reached by Canadian Pacific Eagle Lake area
Railway from either the Vermilion Station or o. 1900
Fagle River Station. N othing was done in the
way of mining, other than a little prospecting
until 1900. Some good surface samples had at-
tracted the attention of prospectors and inves-
tors and during the preceeding winter of 1900,
several properties had been opened up. Inspector
Bow stated the probability of a s teamboat
service on the Eagle Lake waters being initiated
in the spring running from Vermilion station dowm
past Vermilion and Portage Bays to greatly facil-
itate the passing of supplies. He expressed the
possibility of the coming season, 1902, being a
"lively" one for this region.

For his report of 1901, Inspector Carter
said that activity had subsided in conparison to
the previous year's work done in the region. His
explanation for this lay in % he fact that there
was & lack of capital available and workers had
been foreed Yo slow dowm. Howewver, he stated
that capdtal had picked up and working options
were let on the Baden Powell and Gold Eagle
Mines, and that in July, 1901, 19 tons of ore
from the latter, was treated at the zsmall stamp
mill at the Eldorado mine. The author 4did not
make inspection of these mines duwe to the ice
breaking up in April of 1902,
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= The following is a resumé of the progress in the Manitou difrict

as recorded by The Dryden Obeerver from 1928-1037.-

iges

August 31- A report was made on & visit te Geld Foek, 1t stated that
the Laurentian mine was ready to be opened,
September 7- headline- Wabigoon Gold Fileld Attracts Much Intersst
The article said that a new stamp mill had been purchesed
for the Gold Rock Mining Syndicate and that 1t was to be
in operation in six weeks, It was anticipated at this
time thet the revenue from this would assist in purchasing
more property and machinery., The Gold Rock Mining Symdicate
held eight groups of claime, seven hundred and fifty
three acres, formerly lnown as Brading-Mitchell property.
They also had sther eliims adding up the acreage to
ona thousand twWoe hundrad acres,

Hovember 2- headline- Gold Rock Mines To Ship Bullion Befon:End of This
Henth

This article said that the activity taking place at Gold
Rock, initiated by the Gold Rock Mining Syndicate Lid, ,
could cavses this area to be the next (Bnadian Gold Rush

area, Shares were selling at one hundred dellars per wunis.

1931

July 24« Mines of this ares sent a mineral exhibit to the C.N.K.
August 28 Samples from tha Lost Mine s section of the Wabipoon

Contact Bay Company's property takenm by Gus Larsen and

sent to Winnipeg to be assayed had high averaprs,

1) 7.% oz,- $158,00/ton

1) 6.,8502,- 3137,.20/ten

3) 7.04 oz,~ $140.80/ton 121



1931 ctd,

September 25~ hetdline-Manitou Property Proves Its Worth

- value of ore assayed by the Hailebury Assay of fice of
J W . Bell varied from $1358,60-8809,4D per ton,
- wig Master zna i2urentisn mines famed in the Gold boem
days made approximately $30,000,000,00, much of the
gold, approximately LOF was left in the tailings, This
gold was of $5,00 or £6.00 value .
- It was sald by some that mining inNorthern Ontario
could not be profitable because of inaccessibility
but, Porcupine wes making & profit with £6.00 ore,
Power was available at a low cost for the Maniton area
by harnessing the Turtle River,
- Manitou was quite accessible because the lake is a
tributary of Wabigeon Lake andthe C.P.R. runs through
Wabigoon,
' developdients are more likely to be made in the Manitou
area than at Red Lake™
- Big Master and other Manitou area mines did not run
out but were producing in paying quantities after the
wild cat panic of 1898 had swept through, Mining history
records that the final blow came in 191k when wasteful
mathods and timidity of shareholders made mining in this

Area possible only with an urgent. mded of ore,

1935
July l9-headline- Detola Mine Latest ‘roperty In Regiom Where Work Resumed

— This mine owned b:*-“mk%old Mine Incorporated under
the name of Germanica riines was to be develcoped under
the supervision of George bBabeock, ‘The president was
1aa



1935 ctd,

July 19 ctd.- J.P.Delphy, The Detola had rum thirty years earlier kbt
closed on &ceount of Insufficlent funda, Proespecters fore-
saw a gredt future fer the Maniteou z2rea, Development was
alse in progress at Combact Bay, Tabor bake and Dyment,

Cetober?f— Morwood Gold Mines took over Big Master, The mine was renovated

in 1934 end new eouipment was brought in, Thirty thousand tons
of ore Were available and the gold wvalue was high,

Kewrember 22- A record wWas set here for the greatest number of claims .

recorded
1936

January 31- E,B . Enapp wis nemed director of Big Master, Thirty three

mines were then under the MurWood Mining “empiny.

Febrvery 21- Blg Master was to receilwe forty percemt interest in the

Murvwood Uompany .,

May 1l- The Dixon Prospecting Syrddicete was formed to develop three Maniton

claims

June 5= Pip Master mine purchésed the entire interests of Murveood uold

Mines, Bip Master now holds fifty eight cleims in the Mmitou area
July 21-Elcre 8old Mines of Mantreal tock over the Jubilee &nd Laurentisn
mines
= The Kaniwabih Mining Syndicate also had holdings at Uold Rock
and were developing claims there,

August 28- More diamond drilling was undertaken at Big Master,

Dctober 2- The Ororeef Company now operated in Lower Manitou having

taken over the north group of Barker Reef Minea(30 claims)
J o CoFinnan was the mining engineer,
L23



1936 ctd,
October 2 ctd,= headline- Promis Effort A aer Maniton
H.J Bmery and Thayler Lindsley had plans for the instal-
lation of & new mining plant, Consolidation of Laurentian
Jubilee and Keating mines plarmed,
Hovember 13- A government road from Dryden to Cold Rock was urged, The
road was to go from Dryden to meet the Contact Bay Road,
thrn from Contact Bay to the Gold Rock portage,
November20-The Honcurable Peter Heenand }'E;:n.t-tar of Lands and Forests
approvedi. the road teo Cold Reock,
1937
January 15« The Lindsley Company showed interest in the Flora minea
of Laurentian, Jubilee and Keating., Sheft sinking and
fully modern equipment were beling Implimented by Emery
and Lindsley, M.F.,Faulie was the consulting engineer,
- Tecumeeh Gold Hines of Fort Herie toock ower the Detola
mine,
= The Selby Lake Mines Company of Toronto wes doing
explorations on the Gaffney claim adjoining Big Master
and the firat Se&lby Mine,

March 5- Mines of the Manitou-Apres

in use-Blpy Master Consolidated Mines

-Elora Cold Mines

-Selby Lake Mines

~Tecumseh Mines

- (Clark Gold Mines

prospects~ Gaffney claims

= Orareef Gold Mines
~Haniwoble Gold Syndicate
= Valloc Mines
~Mankirk Gold Syndicate 124



prospects ctd,- Wabie Gold Syndicate
~fobin Hood Hining Symdicate
April 2- With new finds, the Elora Mines were able to enlarge, A
twenty stamp mill was installed to handle seventy five tons
a day,
1938
Jarary T- More drilling was planned for Bilg Master, A consultant
reported three ore sections tetalling about one thousand
two hmdred feet,
August 26~ Selby Lake Mines Were to buy out one million shares of a
new mining company 2nd be given options on the remaining

two million,

The Wabigoon Star reported that pleasure cruises could be taken
on the Gallatea, Wm, Whyte and WM, Cross every day but Sunday. The

boats left at eight a,m, from Wabigoon for Besuwdro's Landing.

note- The Flora Mine ren out in 1949,
LS
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The following account is a short desecription of the
gold mining operation as carried owt in 1922 and 1923 as well as
I can remember. I remember it in considerables detail, in general,
how the operation was carried out. This text will help to under-—
stand the drawings of the mine sites and other details of equip-
ment, €tc., which I have drawn from memory.

The mining operation in 1922 and 1923 consisted of an ore
produding shaft at the Bonanza mine, the management and workers
guarters at the Bonanaza and,secondly,the operation of the stamp
mill, located at the site of the o0ld Redeemer mine, approximately
three-quarters of &2 mile from the Bonanza.

The following should be noted . . . I do not know the year

that the shaft at the Redeemer mine was sunk or what year it was
abandcned, when I worked in the stamp mill in 1922-23, all the old
buildings at the Redeemer were gone. The head frame was still there
and there was also a holst house building =till there complete
with a boiler and a hoist engine and one or two old Cameron pumps
s5till around. A lot of scrap pipe, rails, etc., were on the site,
But the stamp mill was operationsl. It was complete with
a building hougingan ore bin, rock crusher, ten stamp mill, a ball
mill, the plates and riffle plate, an engine to drive the mill and
a boiler plant.
At that time T was not interested enough toask how they got
the ore from the Redeemer shaft when it was being operated, into the
stamp mill, but since the two units, that is to say, the shaft and

the mill, are side by side, in all probability it was dumped into a

13%



::::;‘5 -ll'-l'l; Iil;‘l-;ql
| Demawva d Retasios wivar



Trwsl Turn arswnd

Cruthed rasW Foad
) i) s

e mrave]l read Te

j;.-f/';f doch ow Wakigasm Ladke
el :,_,..-- o Elygatise ok dhe Trudh Treatis
it __.. T % i + 1

;" ; :-.: e : Shetihed Erom sy &Jeu E



hand pushed ore truck and then pushed intoe the mill ore bin across
some form of trestle connecting the head frame and stamp mill.
This system, however it had actually been arranged, was all torn
out when I worked there and the R edeemer shaft was full of water
within 20 or 30 feet of the surface. In passing it should be
noted that the shafts at both these sites were wvery wet. All
underground work was carried on by the men working in oil skin
clothing, and the shafts and drifts had to be kept pumped out at
all times. Failure of & pump meant a flooded Aarea in a very short
time.

When I worked at the Hedeemer stamp mill, the ore came from
the Bonanza shaft and was hauled to the Redeemer by a Ford truck.
Incidentally, this was one of the first, if not the very firast
truck in the district and was driven by Morris Jones of Dryden.

In ocrder to get the load of ore into the top of the stamp
mill, a trestle of approximately 250 yards, or perhaps 300 yards,
in length and at the highest point the trestle was a good [2s] f'eet ,
waz built from the top of the rock ridge, north of the mill across
the gully and into the astamp mill.

A erushed rock road with a reasonably gradusl ineline was
uilt from the Bonanzsa to the Redeemer terminationg in a truack
"turnaround” on top of the rock ridge. From this point, the load
was backed across the trestle and dumped into the orebin in the top
of the stamp mill. The drawings supplied with this text make the

picture clearer.
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In 1922-23 the trees around the mine site were very small,
Thés pines there at the time were only about 8 or ¢ feet high as
was the scrub poplar ete., and there was considerable tag alders
in the area. I left the area in 1925 and was never back into
the area until September 26, 1971, some LB years later when together
with Gerrie Noble I had a chance to visit the old site.

In =pite of the fact that the o0ld headframe at both mines
had collapsed and that the area isa now covered with a heavy
growth of more or less mature timber,. Nevertheless, the old
Bonanza shaft, the remeins of machinery foundations and old build-
ings were not too difficult to locate. And at the Redeemer the
shaft, the remains of the headframe and the stampmill and all the
machinery foundations and other ditems were readily found.

The old road was now much overgrown. We could find evidence
of the existence of the crushed stone road (the truck road) and
also of the previously mentioned trestle. PSgitive proof of the
existence of the trestle was found at the top of the ridge, north
of the stamp mill site, where still one can see the truck turn-
around and the rip rap rock wall which was t he point where the
truck started across the gully. This structure was substantial
a3 shown on the drawings made from memory of this particular phase
of the operation.

The mine camp at the Bonanza is still very clear in my mind
and from memory I can draw , basically, what the camp looked like
at that time and a perspective wview plus a plan view but not to
scale has been made to accompany this text.
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Unfortunately, many of the photos I took vhen at these
mines have become loat through the years and, while I remember
muach about the physical layout of the mine camp, my memnory fails
me to draw in exact detail, how the ore was dumped Iinto the orebin
but it was illustrated in the drawings.

We had no form of electricity at the mine. All underground
work was carried out by the light of carbide lamps the miners
carried in their hats.

Work in the camp buildings, hoist house, ete., was 1llumi-
nated by coal oll lamps and lanterns.

The crew in those years was as follows:

Mine Manager: 1922, Mr. Riley 1923, Mr. Whitock

Assayman: Mr. Dowman {he came from the South African gold
fields)

Time Keeper: Jimmy Woods and wife from Winnipeg

Foremen Underground: Jim LaForrest {(later lived in Quibell)

Miners and Muckers: approx. 25 or 30 men-this fluctuated.

Blacksmith: Alex Maney from Wabigoon

Blacksmith Helper: Bob Maclntyre-well known in the district.
Hoistmen: Sandy Grant and Dick Weightmau-two well-known "characters”

Firemen: Fred BEdwards and t wo others I cannot remember their
name:s .

Wood Handlers: three men{one per shift) refer to drawing.

Millwrights: Anthony Maymard, a very skilfull man with an axe,
lived in Minnitaki, he usually had two or more helpers

Cook and Cookee: Mrs A. MacCallum and ancther lady.
Bull Cook: The famous Joe Peel
Teamsters: Archie MacCallum and Cy Byinton, both of Dryden
13537
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General labour: any where from four to ten men, this fluctuated.
Stamp mill: two engine room men, they acted as firemen engineers
Stamp mill men: +two men per shift [ Ben Robinson and mygelf
worked on of the shifts, I forget the names of the
other men.
Two other well known men connected with the gold mining days were
Mr. Jack Beck and Mr. Jack Bowman, but I cannot recall what duty
they filled at the Bonanza, They did a great deal of prospect
work, oete.

At the PBonanza both shaft sinking and drifting were carried
out in 1922 and 1923. The shaft was a little over WO0O feet deep
and drifts were present at 100 foot and 200 foot levels drifting
was being done at the 300 and OO foot lewvels following the wein.

Az sgtated before, the mine itgelf was very wet and sumps
were drilled out at the warious levels and the water pumped to
the surface by Cameron Pumps.

There were steam driven pumps and a steam line ran down one
corner of the shaft to feed them and & water line alsc ran up the
ghaft to surface to get rid of the water.

These pumps were basically as shown in the sketehes attached.
They had a "steam end" and a "water end"™ and the slide valve arrange-
ment was such that the piston worked back and forth thus pumping
water out. At the sumps, the pumps were more or less stationay but
when sinking the shaft, the pump wWas suspended on a cable and the
pump intake was flexible and the last 20 feet or so of the steam
line was flexible.

This arrangement permitted the pump to be hoisted out of
the way when a series of charges were fired to blow out the rock

after it was drilled.
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When the rock was drilled by the use of alr driven Jack
hemmers. The holes were loaded and the fuses were so arranged
that there was a time lag in the firing. The centre blew out
first then the next round would blow In all the remalining rock
around the szides.of the shaft,

After the were fired, ¢ ompressed air was blown into the
shaft{ blowing smoke was the term) and this got rid of most of the
fumes of the dymamite.

Crews of meh called muckers + hen started to lead the are
into the bucket for housting to the surface.

The hodstmen were wvery skillful. They had marks on the
cable and could spot the busket at any level almost as though
they could actually see it end and they hardly ever missed. They
ware edially skillful at ralsing the bucket Just enough at the
headframes so that the the "doga" would cateh the bucket and so
dump it when the cable was slacked o ff a little.

Cdmmunicatioﬁ between the holstmen and the miners In the
shaft was kept up by mesns of & wire cable that operated = bell
in the hoist house when the cable was yenked.

When the ore wes hauled up to the surface, the bucket
dumped inte an ore hin and then the ore was loaded into the
truck and hanled te the Redeemer mine site and the load was
backed across the trestle mentioned earlier and dumped into the
ore bin in the top of the stamp mill.

From bere it fed into :the erusher which broke it up into
pieces. This rock then passed on to the egtamp mill and went

through the stamps.
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At this point the rock was hammered by the stamps until it
was as fine as flour almost. It had to be fine enough to pass
through & sereen in front of the stamps. Water was constantly flow-
ing ‘intc this trough that cought the powdered rock and the flow
through the sereens carricd the rock and the minerals onte twe
large copper plates set at & slope so that the water carrying the
powdered ore and minerals contalned in it, flowed owver these
plates. The plates had a coating of mercury and the gold would
stick to the plates, adhering to the mercury and the residue
passed on to thenext plate which was called a riffle plate, This
rlate wvibrated a1l the time and the ides was that any gold or
other heavy minerals would work over to one side and the lighter
powdered reock would tend to go to the opposite side. Tt was posaible
to 7 see this line of demarration on this plate vhen it was running.
The heavy minerals and any gold that had escaped the first plate
would show up as & distinet dark line and this dark residue was
caught and put back through the mill sgain. The powdered rock was
carried through a flume and caught in a tailings pond. Thia residue
was from time to time put back through the mill.

The plates had to have just the right amount of mercury
on them to affectively catch the gold and some skill was needed
to know when they were just right. The plateman determined this
mostly by touching the plate. If it felt too "goft™ too much
mercury was on the plate. If it felt "hard"™ then more mercury
was needed to stop the gold from passing on awver the plate. When
additional mercury was needed 1t was added at the trough below the
stamps Just a few drops at a time until the plateman was satisfied

that the plate "felt" just right.
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Onee & day stamping ceassd and a team of two men cleaned
the smabgan of f the plates. Cyonide wos shoken from o bottle
ente the plates and then working from planks approximately six
mch:; above the plate, the cyanide was worked ints the meroury
and thes gold sdhering to the plate. This loossn=d 1t wp and the
plate could e scraped clean of the amailgam of g2old and mercury.

All the power at both the Bonanza and the Redesmer was
stean powsr. Bollers fired with four foot ¢cord wood provided
the steam.

I d¢e not recall themake of the 2team driven hoists and the
air compressor engines and the gteam engine at the stemp mill.

A falrly large wood yard existed st the Bonanza site,
bolding spproximately 2,500 to 3,000 cords.

This wood was delivered to the boller house on & light
gauge rail track ( movable as regquired-refer to sketeh). A four
whea]l truck romning on this 1light gavge track parmitted the wood
bandlers {3 shifts a day) to load wood on the truck and push it
to the boller house.

The wood was supplied by cootract, the wipter I was at the
Bonapza, by the BHulchlinscn Brothers, Sandy and Jim, wuwnder conbract
to deliver 2,500 cords of mixzed wood. They had a camp fairly
¢ivse to the mine gite cn € he sliore ¢f a small lake, the name of
which I have forgotten.

Dewey Mooty was the cook at that ¢ amp and there was any where
from 12 to 15 wood cubters at this camp and I forget bow maoy tesme
atera vho drew the wood to the mine site.

Along toward spring in 1525 I went to this camp %o work
in the kitchen with Dewey Monty and In spring when the camp closed

downn I went with an assessment crew to 4o soms asssssment work st
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& claim just off the shore of Trap Lake.

Thisz camp was made up of four men ; the boss, I cannot recall
his name, came from New York, Ben Roblnson, Harry Thompson and my=
eelf, all of us from Dryden. While at this camp I was badly injured
by dce felling from the roof of the two storey shack at the mine
site which hit me in the back and resulted in my being crippled
for a period of 5 months.

After I recovered I never went back to the mines until Sept-

ember 26, 1971, some 48 vears later.
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In the fall of 1922 I had signed on as "cookee™ at the
Bonanza mining comp at the wage of 40.00 per month and board.
While I was by no means kxeen at the prospect of working im
the kitchen, I had to admit that the wages were fairly good
pay for those times and at least I would not have to work in
the b itter winter cold cutting pulp and fuelwood.

Mr. Riley, the manager, had toldéd me to report to him at
the Central Hotel and the mine boat was available to take
myself and some other men he had employed, out to the mine some
seven miles by water, to Larsons Bay on Lake Wabigoon, the site
of the mine,

The conly cother way to get to the mine vaes by a long round
sbout route that went around the exteme west end of the "arm" on
Wabigoon lake and this road terminated at the farm owned by Chas.
Cocmbes. From there on to the mine, there was only a rough
trall through the bush, almost impassable in summer but could be
traversed by sleigh in winter,; but this route was twice as far
as by the water route. The mine boat was a gasoline engine
driwven bost some twenty feet long and could carry eight persons
but more could be taken on any trip by means of a fairly large
btoat that was towed behind. TIn summer almost all supplies were
hauled out to the mine aite by this method and in winter supplies
were hauled out by sleighs over the ice and sometimes by the
long road vie Coombes'! Parm.

Arriving at the mine dock we walked the remainder of the

way over a bush trail about one mile to the mine site and there
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Mr. Riley took me to meet the coock who would be my bosa. We
went into a largebuilding which had a kitchen at one end and a
bedroom for the cook and dookee at the other emnd.

J"I:"ha kitehen was large anf had three huge ¢ock ranges along
one wall and a pantry at one end. Two large work tables, and
a2 larpge sink which simply drained outeide cccupied cne wall and
on the other wall were shelves for pote, pans, dishes and other
utensils.

The dining room had two big tables with benches on either
gelde and were capable of seating seventy men, at that time there
were sbout sixty men at the mine.

The cook's name was Fred Mreaves whose home was in Wine:t
fipeg. He had been s camp cock all his life and, like most camp
cooks he was acentankerous old fellow and not easily pleased, but
he was an excellent cook and knew his Job thorcughly. I learned
later he had worked only in mining camps and hotels. He told
me, and I found out later he knew what he was talking about,
that mining camps served the best meals, much superlior to those
served in railwey camps, road camps, m;-y" lumber camps. Exper-
ienced miners were in great demand and could alwmys get work,
and the first thing they demanded was good food and they
would not stay long at any mine camp if they d4id not get good
meals.

The meals served by Fred Greaves were %ery good, there
were some limitations as to variety sinee in those days there
were no refridgeration facilities. There was a very large ice

house at the rear of the cookhouse and meat was kept on fce .-
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as were other perishables. Supplies came in regularly supplied
on ¢ ontract by Pitt's store in Dryden. Meat came cut into huge
roasts, bacon came in "sides™, eggs by the erate, butter in 1k 1b.
boxes, lard in twenty pound pails, suger and flour in 100 1b.
aacks, tea and coffec in ten pound cans. HRailsins came in 101Tb.
boxes and we got our pie fruits, such es apples. peaches, ete.,
in gallon cans. Two other popular pie fillers were pumplkin aend
cherries and these too we got in one gallon cans. Lemon pie
filler came in powder form in large cartons, and we alsoc got
apricote, pears, and pineapple in gallon cans and these were
gserved in lieu of fresh fruits. Potatoes came in 100 1lb. bags
as d4did carrots and the cabbage came in crates. From time to
time fresh lettuce would come in crates and somtimes fresh
tometoes, although most of the tomatoez used came in the large
gallon cang. T might add that these gallon cans were put up
egpecially for concerns catering to feeding large crews.

A pood deal of chees was used for making sandwiches for
the night crews and this cheese came in wooden boxes sach
containing Svlb.ouand wasiof ~exé2lléntiqidlity.

The mine mansgement knew almost to a penny how much it
cost to feed a man per dey and, although on of the coock's jobs
was to order the supplies. he reguired, he was expected to keep
his costs within the allowable figure set by management. Fred
Greaves had much experience to fall back on and he knew almost
to the ounce, how much to prepare each day, and he could and did

prepare a well balanced diet at costs within the amount allowed.
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The daily menu was varied as much as possible and a
typical day's menu would by something of this order.

_For breakfast he would serve oatmeal porridge or corn
flakes, bacon and eggs as the main dish one day, boiled eggzs
a second day and ssausage the third day. But every day, hot
cakes and syrup were served, bread and butter, tea, coffee or
milk.

For the main meal at noon, roasted beef oﬁe day, roasted
pork the second day, and cutlets on the third day. Soup made
right in the kitchen was served at all noon meals, also lots
of mashed potatoes and two vegatables, canned green beans or
corn or peas. For the evening meal Fred served cold cuts one
day, hot meat pies the second day and Boston baked beans which
he made himself in big browm glazed disghes the third day. At
the evening meal there was always fried potatoes and more pie
and in addition two kinds of cake; one dark fruit cake and
the other a light cake, lots of cookies of wvarious kinds,
gingerbread end doughnuts. Canned fruit was available, alsc
cheese and jams or honey, with tea, coffee and milk as always.

On Sundays Fred almost always served veal cutlets at
dinnertime and thege were .always enjoyed and every so often
he would buy a bunch of chicken and serve a chicken dinner.

T soor learned to recognize his skill and I had great
respect for his ability to figure out how much to prepere each
day with little or no waste and he knew the miners did not

appreciate left-overs.
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The camp employed & "bull ccok™ in the persocm of old
Joe Feel, a grizzled old Irishman of uncertain temper, even the
nine manager used to stay clear of Joe and not give him any
orders.

Joa had charge of a blg, fat, pampered old horse called
Jimmy end the twy were inseparable, although if you heard Joe
talking to Jimmy, which incidentsally he did constantly, you would
kave come away with the idea that Joe would slaughter Jimmy ab
the the first opportunity.

Joe was constantly threatening to beat Jimmy to death or
atop hie oats or sell him for dog focd. But if anyone else said
a word about Jinmy, Joe would turn on the offender, like a tiger.

Joe spent most of hilis waking hours with Jloy, they were
a great pair. The main task Joe had as "bull cook" was to haul
water in barrels from the well on & stonebost and dump it into
barreles at the cockshack and alsoc at the bunkhouses. He also
had to keep the kitchen supplied with stove wood and get the
required ice. Pericdically old Joe would go on a "bender™ with

little or no warning.

VWhen Joe decided to go on a bender, he knew there was no
uge asking to go to tosm by boat. Previous experiences had
taught Mr. Riley that if they took Joe to towm by boat it could
be days before they could get him back on the Job. BSo when Joe
felt the ™urge"” coming on he would quietly hiteh up old Jinmy
to the light spring wagon and the two of them would 4dlsappear
dcwn the bush trall, that led arocund the sxrm of the lake to townm,

thirtern miles distant .
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Onece in towm, Joe would take old Jimmy o the livery
stable and pay for his stabling snd a feed of hay and ocats, and
Joe took off for the boostlegger of his choice, where he would
imbibe considerable of the moonshiner's product and windup by
having ths man f1ill up a one gallon coal oil can he carried
for this very purpose, and stiching a potatoes on the spout he
would boldly stride dowm town to the livery barn and I don't
remember him ever being stopped by the loeal police.

Joe was one of the well mown locel characters and if the
police knew of his strategy, they never bothered him, but we
like to believe he simply had them outwitted. Usually by the
time Joe got 1:_-*.-1::]-: to the livery stable, he would be very well
"dilled" and the livery stable owmer would hitch up old Jimmy
to the spring wagon, load Joe into it usuwally sleeping by
this time,and then lead old Jimmy across the mill bridge and
start him off home. Now o0ld Jimmy kKnew his way home and would
plod along home usually arriving back in camp after dark and
quite 1 ate. He would stop at the bunkhouse and someone would
unlead Joe into his bunk to sleep it 211 o ff snd take old
Jimmy to the barn and feed him. Mr. Riley used to get furious
and kept firing Joe. Only thing wae, Joe paid no attention to
this and kept right on working as though nothing had happened.

Many a time T heard the story told of Mr. Riley"s first
encounter with this old character. When Mr. Riley first came Lo
the mines as manager, the retiring manager decided that he would
introduce him to the crew while they were at supper, so the two
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of them went into the dining room at supper time and the re-
tiring manager, Mr. Badger, said,"Boys, this is Mr. Riley, the
new manager."” no one made any reply to this statement, obeying
the HO TALKING rule of the dining room and Mr. Badger took

Mr. Riley dowm to the end of the table, where Joe Peel was
busy stuffing down his supper. "Mr. Riley," said Badger, "I
would like you to meet Joe Peel, who is rather a privelaged
character around here." 014 Joe Aidn't even loock up and Riley
felt he should make some reply so he sgaid, "Peel, heh? Fow
that's a good Irish name, now isn't 1t?" &Still Joe ignored

him so he continued to say, "You know Joe, back in ould Ireland
the Peels and the Rileys were always fighting." And before

ne ¢ ould say more old Joe looked up and sald, "Yis and Be Jasus
the Rileys sllus got licked!™ From that day on & feud existed
between Joe and Riley. It was strictly forbidden to bring any
liquor into a mine camp, but quite often Joe would smuggle in a
bottle for hiz own ugse and Riley spent a lot of time trying to
catch Joe with it but Jeoe was a very wiley old Irishman and Mr.
Riley mever succoeded.

While the pay and the food were good, I very scon found
out that I would earn every penny. The day's work started at
5:30 am getting ready to serve breakfast at T:00 am and the
morning was completely filled washing dishes, setting tables,
weshing the coock's pans and pots, mopping the dining room and
kitchen floors and peeling spuds and any other jJobs Fred the
cook found for me. Dinmer wes served at twelve nmn-, and supper

at gix pm. No talking was allowed at the tables and the men,
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always hungry, made short work of thelr meals. yJeually the dining
hall was cleared fifteen minutes after they had sst down. I
hated thekitchenchores but realized at least I was inside out cof
the bitter winter cold and the work was easy compared to cutting
wood. T did take interest in cooking and Fred was willing to
show me and teach me a little at a time;how to make ples and
pactries and after that he started me in on making breads and
rolls and all day he would tell =me how to roast meats and pre-
pare vegetables. He wacs proud of his skills and was a good
teacher and liked to show an interested person how to cook. Be,
as the dsys went by, I became guite a bit better than a reaw hand
with a gkillet and sround a cock stove. But I d4id begin to
wonder what it must be like in the kitchen in summer, with no
electrical power and fans, and began to think I would look for
something else to do when spring came. In later years T had on
meny occasicns, cause to be very glad for the instructions I had
received from Fred.

The mining company had & claim steked at Trap Lake about
ten miles from our camp, on Lake Wabigoon, and in order to retain
this e laim in their name, they were required to do so many days
asscasment work on the claim. Mr. Riley sent out a work party
of =ix men to do this work and sent me along to cook for them.
This was to be a two week job at the claim site. We were all
loaded onto the twoe sleighs together with two week's supplies,
tools ond a case of dynamite and were driven to Trap Lake.

A two storey house was located at this claim and it hed a kitchen

and dining area and bunks on the upper floor.
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ne of the men assigned to this work was a young fellow
named Ben Johnson, who was my close friend. Ben owned a pony
and & cutter, which he kept at the mine camp and used to driwve
this pony home almost every week end to see his people in Dryden.
Ben elected to take the pony and cutter to Trap Lake with him
since he knew that a stable was availabe at the claim site.

The slelighs with our supplies and our work crew crossed the lake
over the iee; there was little snow on theice surface that spring,
20 the travel was pretty good. Arriving at the claim site, the
tools and supplies were unloaded and we set up camp and the two
teams and sleighs went back to the mine camp, and were to come
back in two weeks time to take us all back.

The man in charge of this work crew was an American
mining man who came from New York. He was a real character wvho
spoke with a Brooklyn accent, but he got along good with the
mer .

He owned a heavy Colt 45 revolver and he had agood deal of
ammunition and he lowved to fire this thing off at targets.

At the end of the first week, = Sundemy afterncon, he decided
to quit woerk st noonand let evervibody have an afterncon free. The
evening before he had told Ben to take the pony and cutter and
drive to Dryden to get some important mail he said he was expect—
ing. We had a1l finished a big meal at dinner time and the
bogss was Just outside the door, in the warm spring sunshine, enjoy-
ing the thawing snow and engaged in setting up & target on a tree
and getting set to tuse up some armunition, shooting that big LS

Colt. We were all standing around watching him and finally he
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gald easch one of us could shoot off two or three shots each.

He wvas standing guite close to the door and I was standing
in the doorway, as he loaded the gun before heanding it to one of
us to try our luck. One of the sﬁella slipped from his fingers
anid aszs it fell, it hit the toe of his sheoe and bounded towsrds me
coming to rest almost at my feet. I moved a step forward, and
btent dowm to pick it up, and heard a roaring sound, and aomecone
yelled "lcox cut!™ and that was the last thing I heard for a
long time. I learned later that a bBuge chunk of ice that had
gathered and freze to the eaves of the house in the spring thaw,
had suddenly came loose and fell about ten feet in distance,
directly above me as I bent over %o pick up the shell, and it
struck me across the base of the spine and knoecked me out cold.

I was told I was unconcious for a long time before coming
arcound and when I 4id4d I found myself on & cot in the dining
arese and unable to move my legs, and In great pain. There wvere
no first aid supplies on hand, not even and aspirin tablet, and
the bosse was very worried at this since it woas the rule that a
first aid kit and basic medicines and salves, etc., must be cn
hand at all camps.

The fellows tried to undress me but each time they mowved
me I lost conciounsness so they simply piled blankets on to keep
me WArm.

That Sunday night., it started to snow; the weather had
changed and the wind blew hard and it loocked as= though thingswere

getting sericus. ©Since Ben had the pony in town for the weekend
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we di1id not expect him back until about Monday noon. As it turned
out it was Tuesday before he showed up. Of course, he had no way
of knowing what had happened. Late Monday when it became appar—
ent to the fellows that Ben was not going to show up that night
they cut two small bhirches and bent them to make rough sleigh
runners and mounted a platform on this to hold a mattress that T
was Laid on and they loaded me onto the sleigh. It had stopped
snowing but there werese many deep drifts, luckily there was an old
palr of snowshoes in the camp and the fellows started cut to pull
me into towm on the sleighs, taking turns at bresking trail with
the snowshoes. T learned later that they worked all Monday night
until =arly Tuesdsay morning fashioning the sleigh from the few
boards they had and the birch poles for runners, and 4id most of
this work with an axe and a hammer, a few nalils and lots of hay-
wire, of which there was & good supply laying arcund the camp.

I was told later that around L4:00 am Tuesday they were ready to
get out for Dryden, putting the matress on the sleigh and piling
all t he blankets they could on me as it was fairly cold outside
and wind blowing but the snow had ceased to fall., They took
turns at breaking trail with the one pair of snowshoes they had,
and the gther fellows hauled the sleigh. I remenber coming to
from time to time and in s lot of pain. They had almwost reached
the bay wvhere the mine camp wae located when they met Ben comling
back out to Trap Lake. The matress was loaded onte Ben's cutter

and sgoon after we arrived at the mine ceamp. There anosther large
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8leigh was guickly get ready and a team of horaca hooked up
end U was takern in Lo towm.

The déocitor was walting, for " Zen had gone aheed with his
pongr and cutter and told hdim what had harpened anéd hed arrvacged
for & room at hie mothers homs since there was a0 hospitel in
Drvden in 1982, It was about 45 hours sinee Lhe Lioe the azcident

¢ eoured bedisrd the dastor was able to aséedé me and he mafd he did
rot want to wove me to Kenora hospital. There was o distrdek
nurae enployed by the govsromsnt and she came and Jocked after ne
at the Febincon home. TFor the next two weeks the doctor cums
twice Salily and the nurae spent a geroat deal of Lioe lookins
atfter me. The nine manager cams ugr t0 Sea me a Tew days later
ans toeld rme he had wired Hew York abhmrt the aceident =nd he
sagmad very aoncernsd sbout the fast that there were no fires
2id suppliee at Trap Leke. About o week later he coms to s2e ne
agein sns shoaweld e & belsgrar e hal receiveld Zzom New Yok tel-
lirg kie to pay 211 thke Leoetor's bills anc other expenses and =o
kaep me on the pey Tall af Ml pay wvbil T wee able to g8t
crownl asain. In those doys with ne medicare or hosoiteliseticor
pluna., thiz wazs e Uodecnod 5 the family., The acaidesnt haprened
Tn early March and 1% war the &nd of April before T could walk
epain ueing cratehes and add-Jufte Defors T 2could 4o light work,
And I peceived oy pay in full during thot pericd.

K-C-
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HEMORIES FROM THE ROGHAM MINE

The Hegnan Wine was located on a Ll Ttop about fmile from s shore
facling south fn Contact Bay, nine miles south of bryden. The boarding house,

cock-camp and & small stobic wore located near Che shore.

A goldbearing veln had been found and a pit 17 feet deep had bean
excavated on this hilltep. It was said that $10,000,00 in coarse gold and
ruggets had been taken out of this pit. Storekeepers in Dryden had RuUgoats on
display. When | worked there, the winter of 1918, there was a boiler house
Luilt of frame and sheathlng, which contalned o small ane=-cyl Ender alr compressor,
ore boller. a small holst and & big heatlng box stove that took wood four feet
long. Alse a l-stamp mlll located about 20 feet south of the shaft house. The
shaft house was constructed of squared tisbers and sheeted with round poles.

At this stage, the shaft was sunk 50 feel deep snd a ¢rlft driven to
the noreh about 50 Feet, and a ralse driven to the surface and a ladder fnstalled.
A Tew rounds were taken to lengthen this tunnel. but Bo veln was wisible thers, -
2 this was tarminated. The shaft was sunk snother 50 feet and tunnels were
driven both north and south and a weln showed at Both ends. About 20 feat In
on the north end some coarse gold and a few nuggets the sizc of beans were found.

At this polnt, the mfners got into a hassle with the managenent. The
mananer wantod the miners to take a3 contrace drlf:tfaat a certaln price per foot,

ond the miners refused because the blacksmith made a poor job of sharpenlng the
drill steel, and would have had to be replaced. The manager then slashed the
miners' wagss, and the mlners pul ted out, because a man could get & Job anywhere,
anytime, in those days.

~The @lne captain decided to run the drill machinehimself wntil they could
Get @ new crew, and he had told someone later that he couid understand why the
aliners quit. An article appeared In the Oryden Observer afterwards, proclalming
that there had been labour trouble at the Ragnon Hine, caused hy some pgleators
wio had tried to nrgantze a labour wnion. Syt

.

The wline was stlll operating after Hew Year's 1919, but the steam boller
ard alr compressor had been moved down Eo the lakeshore, and an alrllneg installad
all the way vp to the shaft howse and holst room.

One day they bad an explosion In the boist-room that killed two men
and injured a third mam. There ware a nuiber of shelves Fastaned to the wall




above the big box stove, and Firebricks were heated on top of the stove. The
hot bricks were placed on the Lotlom shelf, dynamite on the sheif above, then
bricks on the next shelf, In that order. watil all the shelves were filled. M
vhale box of dynasmlte had been on the shelves.  Somebow, the dynacite exploded,
oo man was kilicd while sltting on @ bepch, snother thrown through a wall Into
an adjelning room. The third mon had come in from cutside, Stooped down to
pick up sonsthilng of F the fleor, and was bLlown Lackwerds out through the door.
lie managed to walk down to the shore te tell the rest of the crew about the
explosion. He was bleeding from mouth and nose, amd spent some time In a
hospltal. A flre started after the explosion and 0lames played on the alr
recelver logated by the shafe-house, and the end of it Llicw off and sailed owver
the burning bullding ond was found about 197 yords away In a ravine.

Getween the shafthouse and the stamp mill, a patch of quartz existed.
eme day during an ldle perlod, 1| tock a chipping point and hommer and broke out
some guartz and in the Seams, thin flakes of gold appeared.

The rumour was that soee mining company hod offered the owner
450 ,000.00 outright for the property, but the owner asked for 575L,000.00 and o
pne-third interest In profits made, which was refused. Instead the company tosh
an eption, which 1lkely Included the installation of machincry oand other equlipment
sinking a chaft and sxk lateral work. This man was cutting fucl wood for Che
sepm boller when we worked there.

wothling was ever heard abowt this mine ofter 15220
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MEMORIES OF A MINING OPERATION AT MINNITAKI LAKE

In 1917V a mine called Northern Pyrites, also St.
Nicholas Copper Company, was operating about two miles south
ef the C.N. Railway in the vicinity of Hudson. This mine was
shipping twenty carloads a day, forty tons per car, of an ore
called pyrite or sulphide, to some place in the United States
where it was used for making ammunition during the first World
War. This ore also carried a small amount of gold. This op—
eration was terminated when a surface deposit was discovered
in the U.S5.A. Some time during the years 1915-1916 ancther
deposit was discovered on a shore facing west on Lake Minnitaki,
south of Sioux Lookout. The story arcund this discovery is that
an Indian had a campfire on a flat rock about ten feet from the
water's edge and when putting out the fire, saw that the rock
had turned red. He told a commercial fisherman (I believe his
name was Theodore Lyons) about this and Lyons staked a claim
and had the stuff analyzed. He later sold the claim for £15,000.00
to Julian Cross and James Whelan of Fort William. fThe story
was that Lyons handed the Indian $1,000.00 for his part.

A fellow by the name of William Threateway took a contract
to diamond drill the deposit and he alsc sunk a shaft eighty
feet deep on the exact spot where the deposit was first seen
and started a tunnel under the lake to check on the width of
the deposit. His egquipment consisted of two small upright steam
boilers, a small air compressor, a 2 cylinder water pump and
a small hoist. He also had a pump standing on a erik or plat-
form about seven feet from the floor of the shaft, with a suction
hose with its lower end in a pit about four feet deep under the
crib. This pump was for the purpose of keeping the mine dry.
The tunnel extended out under the lake about forty-five feet
and as there was only thirty-five or forty feet of rock above
the tunnel, the tunnel was pretty wet, water was oozing out of

SVEry Seam.
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In the later part of the summer of 1917, Threateway's
miners guit and he went teo Fort William to hire a new crew.

He left the cook, a fellow with a horse to haul wood, and a
man to keep the boilers operating and look after the pump to
keep the mine from flooding. Evidently Threateway did not get
any miners, but he brought back his younger brother Garnet as
stationary engineer. The fellow that was supposed to keep the
mine dry had fallen asleep, the fire went out in the boilers,
the pump stopped, and when the man woke up the water had risen
above the pump. When he got the steam up in the boilers, the
steam just condensed and the pump did not move and the mine
filled level with the water in the lake. Threateway then came
to Kenora to look for men. He hired Emil Hubner, (the original
owner of the property where Barbara Machin's tourist camp is
located) ,a tall Scot whose name I cannot remember, and an
Irishman we called Bill. I cannot remember his second name,
he used to live at the old Albion House, and I believe he was
caretaker at the Coney Island Beach later on. He was sporting
& big white moustache. I was the youngest of the gang.

We traveiled by boat to Minaki and by train to Sioux
Lookout, then by train to Alcona on the Port Arthur branch line.
We had about a mile walk from Alcona to the lake, where the four
of us were transported to the mine in a Ffourteen foot flat
bottom boat powered with a small outboard engine. The distance
must have been about six miles. The boat was heavily loaded
and Bill and the Scotsman were pretty nervous, but Hubner tried
to calm them. The coperator must have had a bad time too.

When we got to the mine our first job was to overhaul a
small two-cylinder steam pump and renew all packing. We then
rigged up a sling on the pump, attached the sling to the hoist
cable and after fastening a twenty=-foot suction hose to the pump.
wWe lowered the pump down in the shaft. We then screwed a three-
inch pipe twenty feet long into the discharge hole in the pump,
with a 90 degree elbow on top, and a short horizontal pipe and
started the pump. When the water dropped close to the checkvalve
in the suction hose, we stopped the pump, lowered it twenty feet,
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added another twenty foot length of pipe and contipued the
operation. We were running short on three-inch pipe, so
Threateway paddled off in his 18 foot prospector canoe and in
& couple of hours came back with another twenty-foot length of
pipe lashed on top of the cance. Try that some time.

After the mine was dry, Hubner and Bill started driving
the tunnel again, Hubner operating a number two piston rdock
drill, Bill as helper, the Scot sawing and splitting wood for
boilers, and I was chosen to look after the boilers at night
and keep the pump going. I bhad a close shave one night. I had
a lunch arcund midnight, and then I went down the shaft, filled
the lubricator with oil, clambered up, filled the boilers with
water, stoked the fires, and stretched out on my back through
an opening in the wall that was used for heaving the wood through.
The ground outside was level with the bottom lﬁg in this cpening.
It was a wonderful September night, with a full moon shining.
There were the usual night noises and you could hear the rabbits
rustling amongst leaves and dry bark. I woke up about three
hours later. The water in the glasses was just showing, the
fires low, not encugh steam to work the injectors to add water
to the boilers. The pump was barely moving and not pushing
a drop of water to the surface. The water in the shaft was
about four feet below the pump. I shut the pump down, got the
Fires going and as soon as the pressure was at 60 lbs. I put
in enough water to be safe and started the pump again. When
the engineer and the rest of them arrived at 8 o'clock I had
the tunnel dry, but, boy, was I worried for a spell.

A couple of weeks later, the boss hired another man to
look arfter the night job, and I went to the job I was hired ocut
for, helper on the rock drill, and Bill did the mucking. We
had a couple of near accidents. When we went down in the
mornings, we loaded all the sharpened steel in the bucket and
stood one on either side of the bucket holding on to the cable,
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and the engineer would lower us down in the shaft. In October
it started freezing at night, and hoist room was fairly cool,
the chinking having fallen out from between the logs so you
could see out between the timbers. One morning we were ready
to go down, and Bill was preparing to walk down the ladders,
eighty feet, no landings and the ladders slippery and wet,

I told Bill, ' You go down on the bucket, and I'1l take the
ladders". I was about half way down, when the bucket and the
two riders came sizzling past and finally stopped about two
feet from the bottom. The engineer came out and peered down
the shaft and inquired if everybody was alright. WwWhat had
bhappened was that the ice had formed on the brake drum. The
brake band had wooden cleats bolted on with about eight inches
of space betwesn them, and when the brake was released, the cleats
Just skidded on the ice until the ice wore off, and the brake
finally took hold.

The following morning the same procedure was repeated.

We lcaded the drills in the bucket, but first I went over to
the hoist room and asked the engineer about the hoist and he
thought it would be alright, so we stepped on the bucket, it
started to move, and all at once it took off again, and again
stoppad about twe feet from the bottom. That put an end to
riding down on the bucket.

Later on we had another brush with the grim reaper.
Usually we would drill seven or eight holes, what was called
a cut, we would blast this cut, muck the broken ore back far
encugh so we could set up the machine again, and drill and blast
the rest of the "round'. Then one day Hubner decided to drill
and blast the whole round, and it took seventeen holes. After
clearing out our egquipment, we went up on top and prepared our
fuses and blasting caps, then brought this and the dynamite
regquired down in the tunnel. We proceeded to load the holes,

and as each hole was finished, the fuses were coiled close to
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the collar of each hole. Before lighting the fuses, we would
go out to the shaft and ring a certain number of bells, the
blasting signal, and the engineer would stand by the hoist to
haul us up when we rang one bell. Then came the procedure of
lighting the fuses, which had been split at the end to expose
the powder inside. We were using candles for light, as carbide
lamps had hardly come into use at this time. Hubner would

hold one lighted candle in his right hand, grasp a fuse in his
left hand and apply the flame to the cleft end of each fuse.

It toock a little time to ignite the fuses, as water was
dripping and the fuses were wet. He finally had six burning
and I was watching tarspots appearing close to the collar of
the first hole, and I am sure my hair must have been standing
en end. I said "Let's get cut of here’, and he said "I am
going to get this one', the seventh. Finally, the fuse ignited
and he. said 'okay, let's go'. I was young and fond of life,
and ran like a deer, jumped up on the bucket and it started as
soon as I rang the bell, and Hubner was left on the Ffloor.

He grabbed the bellcord and rang, the bucket stopped and he had
to climb a few rungs on a ladder to climb on the bucket, rang
the bell again and the bucket started to rise. The bottom of
the bucket was a few feet above the roof of the tunnel when the
first hole blew, and a stream of rocks shot out of the tunnel
and hit the rock wall under the bucket.

A few amusing incidents happened too. Our cook got
bloodpoison in one finger and the boss had to take him to Port
Arthur and also get another cook. He came back on a Saturday
evening with a young fellow who let it be known that he had been
short-order cock in a restaurant in Chicago. The first meal
he prepared was breakfast on Sunday morpning. There was a bowl
of ocatmeal porridge and after we had a helping of that we
attacked a stack of pancakes on a platter. There were only three
of us at the table, the boss sitting beside me and Bill sitting
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opposite me on the other side of the table. BRill was sawing
away at his pancakes, and finally he exploded, ‘What Christly
kind of cook is thisll'. The boss sald 'You have complained
about a pain in your side, you should try some of these heated
gaskets'. The cook was told on Tuesday by the boss '"You better
get your things tegether and I'1ll take you into Alcona because
I'm afraid this gang will lynch you'. We got another cook

& few days later.

The bunkhouse where most of the crew slept had no screen
windows or screen door, and the place was full of houseflies,
which were crawling all cover us. Hubner suggested that maybe
dynamite would work. So we got a stick of dynamite, a cap
and a short piece of fuse. We suspended the dynamite in the
centre of the room, hung blankets over the windows, 1it the fuse
and went out and shut the door. After the bang, we went in
and every fly was on the beds and the floor. We shook the
blankets and swept the flies off the tables and chairs and then
swept floor. We collected about half a gallon of stunned
flies and disposed of them in the heating stove.

The Scot left about three weeks after we got to the mine.
I believe he developed a chest ailment. Bill gquit the second
weak of October and it started to get cold and messy, so Hubner
and I pulled out about the 15th of October. Our means of
transportation was the cance, and the boss told us "You two
paddle the cance. JI'll be Hudson's Bay man this time'. Hubner
paddled stern and I paddled bow and the boss :sat in the céntre,
We.cashed our chegques at Siocux Tookout and we met Percy Williams
there, I believe he was working at the Hudson's Bay store. WwWe
took the train going west the next day and got off at Quibell
and hired a livery rig to take us to Vermilion Bay. There was
four inches of snow on the road by the time we got there, the
17th day of October, 1917.

OLD TIMER
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